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be conducted via webinar and teleconference onlv. In compliance with said 
orders, a physical location will not be provided for this meeting. These measures 
will only apply during the period in which state or local public health officials 
have imposed or recommended social distancing. 

Dated: October 22, 2020 

Rischa S. Cole 
Secretary of the District 

W:\Board of Directors - Meeting Related Docs\Notices\Notices 2020\102720_Finance-Administration_location change.docx 



This page is intentionally left blank.



<B BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
EBMUD EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

375 - 11th Street, Oakland, CA 94607 Office of the Secretary: (510) 287-0440 

AGENDA 
Finance/ Administration Committee 

Tuesday, October 27, 2020 
10:00 a.m. 
**Virtual** 

Location 

Due to COVID-19 and in accordance with the most recent Alameda County Health Order, and 
with the Governor's Executive Order N-29-20 which suspends portions of the Brown Act, this 
meeting will be conducted via webinar and teleconference only. In compliance with said 
orders, a physical location will not be provided for this meeting. These measures will only apply 
during the period in which state or local public health officials have imposed or recommended 
social distancing. 

Committee Members William B. Patterson {Chair}, John A. Coleman and Andy Katz 
will participate via webinar or teleconference 

*** Please see appendix for public participation instructions*** 

ROLL CALL: 

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Board of Directors is limited by State law to providing a briefresponse, asking 
questions for clarification, or referring a matter to staff when responding to items that are not listed on the agenda. 

DETERMINATION AND DISCUSSION: 

1. Financial Review of Fiscal Year 2020 (Skoda) 

2. Fiscal Year 2020 Key Performance Indicators Report (Skoda) 

3. Quarterly Financial Reports: (Skoda) 
• Quarterly Payroll, Disbursement and Real Estate Summary Reports for the 

Water and Wastewater Systems for Quarter Ended September 30, 2020 
• Quarterly Investment Report- September 30, 2020 

4. Monthly Investment Transactions Report (Skoda) 

5. Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act Loan Letter oflnterest (Skoda) 

6. Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Power Sales Report (Skoda) 



Finance/ Administration Committee of 
October 27, 2020 
Page2 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Disability Notice 
If you require a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in an EBMUD public meeting 
please call the Office of the Secretary (510) 287-0404. We will make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. Some special equipment arrangements may require 48 hours advance notice. 

Document Availability 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda that have been submitted to the EBMUD Board of Directors within 72 
hours prior to this meeting are available for public inspection in EBMUD 's Office of the Secretary at 375 11th 
Street, Oakland, California, during normal business hours, and can be viewed on our website at www.ebmud.com. 

W:\Board of Directors - Meeting Related Docs\Agendas\Agendas 2020\2020 Finance Committee\102720_finance_agenda.docx 
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  APPENDIX 

 
 

Finance/Administration Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2020 

10:00 a.m. 
 

EBMUD public Board meetings will be conducted via Zoom. 
Please note that Board meetings are recorded, live-streamed, and posted on the District’s website. 

 
Please visit this page beforehand to familiarize yourself with Zoom. 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting 
 
 
Online  
https://ebmud.zoom.us/j/98073157323?pwd=a1pzN3kyb05JSkZuNzZ5cmx0NlRzQT09 
Webinar ID: 980 7315 7323 
Passcode: 508915 
 
By Phone 
Telephone: 1 669 900 6833   
Webinar ID: 980 7315 7323 
Passcode: 508915 
International numbers available: https://ebmud.zoom.us/u/aeWIq7m6q 
 
Providing public comment 
The EBMUD Board of Directors is limited by State law to providing a brief response, asking questions 
for clarification, or referring a matter to staff when responding to items that are not listed on the agenda.  
 
If you wish to provide public comment please:  

• Use the raise hand feature in Zoom to indicate you wish to make a public comment  
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raising-your-hand-in-a-webinar 

o If you participate by phone, press *9 to raise your hand 
• When prompted by the Secretary, please state your name, affiliation if applicable, and topic 
• The Secretary will call each speaker in the order received   
• Comments on non-agenda items will be heard at the beginning of the meeting 
• Comments on agenda items will be heard when the item is up for consideration 
• Each speaker is allotted 3 minutes to speak; the Committee Chair has the discretion to amend this 

time based on the number of speakers 
• The Secretary will keep track of time and inform each speaker when his/her allotted time has 

concluded 
 
 

To observe the Finance/Administration Committee Meeting, 
please visit: https://www.ebmud.com/about-us/board-directors/board-meetings/ 

 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
https://ebmud.zoom.us/j/98073157323?pwd=a1pzN3kyb05JSkZuNzZ5cmx0NlRzQT09
https://ebmud.zoom.us/u/aeWIq7m6q
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raising-your-hand-in-a-webinar
https://www.ebmud.com/about-us/board-directors/board-meetings/
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DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager 6'-c­

Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

Financial Review of Fiscal Year 2020 

Attached is the financial review of Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 for the period ending June 30, 2020. This 
report includes the basic financial statements, a memorandum on internal controls and required 
communication, the budget performance, and the financial indicators. Details on the financials as 
well as the budgetary performance for the fiscal year are provided in this report to enhance the 
usability, clarity and accessibility of financial information. Fiscal impacts to the District due to 
COVID-19 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 are discussed in the attached report. This report will 
be discussed at the October 27, 2020 Finance/Administration Committee meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

Based on a financial review of FY20 results, the Water and Wastewater Systems' overall financial 
condition continues to remain strong with a stable revenue base and sound reserves. The District's 
actions to support long-term financial health over the years have lessened the severity of fiscal 
impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. While the FY20 financial results are positive, much is still 
evolving relative to the pandemic and impacts may be greater in FY21 . 

Basic Financial Statements 

The annual financial audit for FY20 has been completed by the District's external auditors, Lance, 
Soll and Lunghard (LSL) CPAs and Advisors, in accordance with Section 11889 of the Municipal 
Utility District (MUD) Act. The annual audited Basic Financial Statements prepared by District 
staff is attached. Also in accordance with the MUD Act, summary financial statements for the 
Water and Wastewater Systems were published in the East Bay Times on September 18 and 25, 
2020. Once again the District has received an unmodified or "clean" opinion on its financial 
statements. 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related 
to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placements, will be implemented effective fiscal 
year 2020-2021 in accordance with GASB Statement No. 95 - Postponement of Effective Dates of 
Certain Authoritative Guidance, which provides a temporary relief to governments and other 
stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
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Audit Communication Letter 

The external auditors found no material weaknesses in District operations during their audit. 

Annual Budget Performance 

The District declared an emergency on March 17, 2020 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic to 
ensure its ability to respond rapidly to changing circumstances. A reduction in revenues and 
increased expenses were seen during the second half of the fiscal year in response to the pandemic. 

Water System 

Total Water System revenues of $710.9 million were $47.7 million above budget and operating 
expenses were less than budget by $36.1 million. All revenue sources were above budget. The 
primary drivers ofrevenues above budget were Water Charges ($23.9 million) and System Capacity 
Charges (SCC) ($13.3 million). Water Charges revenue was 4.0 percent above budget and resulted 
from billed consumption of 147.8 million gallons per day (MGD) compared to a budget for 141 
MGD. FY20 billed water consumption was 3.6 percent greater than FY19 billed consumption of 
142.7 MGD. SCC revenues were strong prior to the pandemic. A strong third quarter yielding $22.1 
million mitigated impacts of the shelter-in-place orders in the fourth quarter. Total capital expenses 
were $285.7 million or 85 percent of budget. 

Wastewater System 

Total Wastewater System revenues of $144.2 million were $4.0 million above budget and operating 
expenses were less than budget by $5.7 million. The major sources ofrevenues above budget are 
Resource Recovery ($2.1 million), Wastewater Capacity Charges ($1.7 million), Taxes 
($0.9 million), and Treatment Charges and Permits ($0.5 million). Lower revenues for Interest 
Income and Wet Weather Facility Charges offset these revenues. Total capital expenses were $41.8 
million or 86 percent of budget. 

Financial Indicators 

The Water and Wastewater Systems' overall financial conditions remain sound. Both systems 
exceeded target goals in District Policies 4.02 and 4.27 due to efforts to contain operating costs and 
maintain revenues. All other indicators reflect stable conditions as compared to the prior year. 

The attached report provides more detailed financial information for FY20. 

CCC:AMM:JMC 

Attachment 

I:\Sec\2020 Board Related Items\Committees 2020\102720 Finance Ctte\FIN - Ctte Item Financial Review of Fiscal Year 2020.docx 
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 FINANCIAL REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Introduction 
 
This annual report summarizes the Water and the Wastewater Systems’ financial performance 
for the Fiscal Year 2020. The scope of this report includes the financial statements, internal 
controls review, budgetary performance, and financial trends. 
 
Summary 
 
The Water and Wastewater Systems’ overall financial condition continues to remain healthy with 
a stable revenue base and sound reserves. Debt service coverage for both enterprises was 
higher than projected. Rate Stabilization Funds for both enterprises remain unchanged 
compared to the prior fiscal year. 
 
On March 19, 2020 Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Shelter-in-Place Executive Order in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Fiscal impacts to the District for fiscal year ending June 
30, 2020 as a result are discussed in this report. 
 
Discussion 
 
Based on a financial review of FY20 results, the Water and Wastewater Systems’ overall 
financial condition continues to remain healthy with a stable revenue base and sound reserves. 
The District’s actions to support long-term financial planning over the years have lessened the 
severity of fiscal impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic. While the FY20 financial results are 
positive, much is still evolving relative to the pandemic and impacts may be greater in FY21.  
 
Basic Financial Statements 
The annual financial audit for Fiscal Year 2020 has been completed by the District’s external 
auditors, LSL (Lance, Soll and Lunghard) CPAs and Advisors, in accordance with Section 
11889 of the Municipal Utility District (MUD) Act. The annual audited Basic Financial Statements 
prepared by District staff is attached. Also in accordance with the MUD Act, summary financial 
statements for the Water and Wastewater Systems were published in the East Bay Times on 
September 18 and 25, 2020. Once again the District has received an unmodified or “clean” 
opinion on its financial statements.  
 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures 
Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and Direct Placements, will be implemented 
effective fiscal year 2020-2021 in accordance with GASB Statement No. 95 – Postponement of 
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which provides a temporary relief to 
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.   
 
Balance Sheet 
Water and Wastewater balance sheets remain sound.  
 
Net Position 
Overall net position increased $244 million due to $291 million increase in net investment in 
capital assets and $43 million decrease from unrestricted funds primarily capital contributions 
and net operating income. 
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Capital Contributions 
The District’s capital contribution decreased $34 million due to a $20 million decrease in System 
Capacity Charge (SCC) and $7.6 million decrease in Wastewater Capacity Fees due to a 
slowdown in property development. Construction service installments decreased $5.9 million 
due to slowdown of construction projects in the Oakland and Berkeley service areas.  
 
Operating Indicators 
The Water and Wastewater indicators reflect a stable customer base, strong collection controls 
and reasonable rates. 
 
Retirement 
The District's net Pension and Health Benefit Obligation funded percentage increased slightly 
from 73.20 percent in FY18 to 73.78 percent in FY19 due primarily to increases in investment 
earnings. 
 
Memorandum on Internal Controls and Required Communication 
The external auditors found no material weaknesses in District operations during their audit.  
 
Annual Budget Performance 
Water System 
Total Water System revenues of $710.9 million were $47.7 million above budget and operating 
expenses were less than budget by $36.1 million. All revenue sources were above budget. The 
primary drivers of revenues of above budget were Water Charges by $23.9 million or 4.0 
percent, and SCC Revenues by $13.3 million or 33 percent. The budget was based on billed 
water consumption of 141 million gallons per day (MGD). Actual consumption was 147.8 MGD 
or 6.8 MGD greater than budget, and an increase of 3.6 percent compared to FY19 billed 
consumption of 142.7 MGD. Total capital expenses were $285.7 million or 85 percent of budget. 
 
Wastewater System 
Total Wastewater System revenues of $144.2 million were $4.0 million above budget and 
operating expenses were less than budget by $5.7 million. The major sources of higher 
revenues were Resource Recovery, Wastewater Capacity Charges, Taxes, and Treatment 
Charges and Permits. Lower revenues for Interest Income and Wet Weather offset these 
revenues. Total capital expenses were $41.8 million or 86 percent of budget. 
 
Financial Indicators 
Water and Wastewater Systems’ overall financial conditions remain sound. Both systems 
exceeded District Policies 4.02 and 4.27 target goals due to continuing actions taken to contain 
operating costs and maintain revenues. All other indicators reflect stable conditions as 
compared to the prior year. 
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2020 

 

 
 

This section presents management’s analysis of the East Bay Municipal Utility District’s (the District) 
financial condition and activities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020. Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements. 
 
This information should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements that follow this section. 
The District, as the primary governmental entity, includes within the financial statements, the financial 
position and activities of the District’s Employees’ Retirement System (Employees’ Retirement System) as a 
component unit. The Employees’ Retirement System issues its own financial statements and MD&A under a 
separate cover. Significant matters pertaining to the Employees’ Retirement System have been included in the 
notes to the financial statements as deemed appropriate. 

The information in this MD&A is presented under the following headings: 

Organization and Business 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

Financial Analysis 

Capital Assets   

Debt Administration 

Request for Information 

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS 

The District provides water and wastewater services to industrial, commercial, residential, and public 
authority users. The Water System collects, transmits, treats, and distributes high quality water to 
approximately 60% (332 square miles) of the developed area within Alameda and Contra Costa counties of 
California and serves a population of about 1.4 million. The Wastewater System intercepts and treats 
wastewater from residences and industries within an 88-square-mile service area including the communities 
of Alameda, Albany, Berkeley, Emeryville, Oakland, Piedmont, and the Stege Sanitary District and serves a 
population of about 685,000. The District recovers cost of service primarily through user fees. 

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components: (1) Fund Financial Statements and 
(2) Notes to Basic Financial Statements. The report also contains other required supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other special 
purpose governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial-related legal 
requirements. 

Proprietary Funds. The District’s proprietary funds consist of two enterprise funds, the Water System and the 
Wastewater System. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises – where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed 
or recovered primarily through user charges. 
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2020 

 

 
 

The District’s proprietary fund statements include: 

The Balance Sheet presents information on the District’s assets and deferred outflows, and liabilities and 
deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is 
improving or deteriorating. 

While the Balance Sheet provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at 
year-end, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the 
District’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed 
during the year. This statement can be used as an indicator of the extent to which the District has successfully 
recovered its costs through user fees and other charges. All changes in net position are reported during the 
period in which the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods, such as delayed collection of operating revenues and the expense of employee 
earned but unused vacation leave. 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, 
capital, noncapital, and investing activities. This statement summarizes the annual flow of cash receipts and 
cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the obligation or receipt and 
excludes noncash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of assets. 

Fiduciary Fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. The District’s fiduciary fund consists of the Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust fund, 
which is maintained to account for assets held by the Employees’ Retirement System in a trustee capacity for 
vested and retired employees. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for the 
proprietary funds. 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to basic financial statements 
can be found on pages 33 to 92 of this report. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District’s progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment healthcare benefits to its employees. Such required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 93 to 100 of this report. 
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2020 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Financial Highlights 

In fiscal year 2020, EBMUD continued to effectively manage its finances and strengthen its financial position 
by adopting sufficient water and wastewater rates to fund capital infrastructure improvements and to maintain 
strong financial performance. The following results of operations indicate a continuing strong and stable fiscal 
position. 

The total assets and deferred outflows of the District exceeded the total liabilities and deferred inflows by 
$2.1 billion (net position). 

Net position increased by $244 million or 13% during the fiscal year.  

Capital assets increased by $187 million or 4% to $5.2 billion. 

Operating revenue increased by $47 million or 7% to $694 million. 

Operating expense increased by $56 million or 13% to $488 million. 

Non-operating net expense decreased by $8 million or 18% to ($39) million. 

Capital contributions decreased by $34 million or 30% from the prior fiscal year. 

Financial Position  

In the current year, the District’s total net position increased by $244 million or 13% during the fiscal year. 
The Water System’s net position increased by $214 million or 14% and the Wastewater System’s net position 
increased by $30 million or 9%. Current and other assets decreased by $31 million or 3%. Capital assets 
increased by $187 million or 4%. By far the largest portion of the District’s net position, 86% or $1.8 billion, 
represents its investment in capital assets necessary to provide services. 

In the previous fiscal year, the District’s total net position increased by $259 million or 16% during the fiscal 
year. The Water System’s net position increased by $217 million or 16% and the Wastewater System’s net 
position increased by $42 million or 14%. Current and other assets increased by $171 million or 19%. Capital 
assets increased by $195 million or 4%. By far the largest portion of the District’s net position, 82% or 
$1.5 billion, represents its investment in capital assets necessary to provide services. 
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Table 1 shows the District’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018:  

2020 2019 Variance %

Current and other assets 1,044,499$    1,075,055$    (30,556)$        (3)%
Capital assets 5,237,870    5,051,112    186,758        4% 

Total assets 6,282,369      6,126,167      156,202         3% 

Deferred outflow of resources 215,423         205,992         9,431             5% 

Total assets and deferred outflow 6,497,792      6,332,159      165,633         3% 

Current and other liabilities 960,028         905,933         54,095           6% 
Long-term liabilities 3,324,076    3,442,657    (118,581)       (3)%

Total liabilities 4,284,104      4,348,590      (64,486)          (1)%

Deferred inflow of resources 80,281           94,307           (14,026)          (15)%

Total liabilities and deferred inflow 4,364,385      4,442,897      (78,512)          (2)%

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,840,222    1,549,619    290,603        19% 
Restricted 250,370       253,567       (3,197)           (1)%
Unrestricted 42,815         86,076         (43,261)         (50)%

Total net position 2,133,407$    1,889,262$    244,145$       13% 

Table 1

(In thousands)

Net Position
Water and Wastewater
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2019 2018 Variance %

Current and other assets 1,075,055$    904,282$       170,773$       19% 
Capital assets 5,051,112    4,855,907    195,205        4% 

Total assets 6,126,167      5,760,189      365,978         6% 

Deferred outflow of resources 205,992         169,099         36,893           22% 

Total assets and deferred outflow 6,332,159      5,929,288      402,871         7% 

Current and other liabilities 905,933         899,620         6,313             1% 
Long-term liabilities 3,442,657    3,317,300    125,357        4% 

Total liabilities 4,348,590      4,216,920      131,670         3% 

Deferred inflow of resources 94,307           82,478           11,829           14% 

Total liabilities and deferred inflow 4,442,897      4,299,398      143,499         3% 

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,549,619    1,494,381    55,238          4% 
Restricted 253,567       256,299       (2,732)           (1)%
Unrestricted 86,076         (120,790)      206,866        (171)%

Total net position 1,889,262$    1,629,890$    259,372$       16% 

(In thousands)

Net Position
Water and Wastewater
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Table 1
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Results of Operations 

In the current fiscal year, the District’s total operating revenue of $694 million for the year increased by 
$47 million and total operating expense of $488 million for the year increased by $56 million. The change in 
net position (including capital contributions) decreased from $279 million in the previous fiscal year to  
$244 million in the current fiscal year. The District’s total net position increased from $1,889 million to 
$2,133 million during the current fiscal year. 

The major components of the District’s results of operations in the current fiscal year were: 

 Water revenue increased by $47 million or 9% due to a 6.5% water rate increase at the beginning of 
fiscal year 2020 and a 3.5% increase of billed water consumption. The major categories of billed water 
consumption consist of a 6.0% increase in residential customers’ water consumption and a  
2.4% decrease in industrial customers’ water consumption.  

 Wastewater revenue remained largely stable in the fiscal year 2020 compared to fiscal year 2019, 
increasing $1.6 million or 2%. 

 The power revenue decreased by $4 million or 36% due to dry weather and less water to generate 
hydropower in the current year. 

 Operating expense increased by $56 million, primarily as increases of $33 million in pension expense, 
$9 million in raw water expenses, $9 million in water treatment and distribution, $4 million in sewer 
treatment plant operations, $5 million in depreciation on utility plant and vehicle, were offset by 
decrease of $5 million in general administration expense.  

 Net nonoperating expense decreased by $8 million, primarily due to a $5 million increase in property 
tax received and $6 million decrease in bond interest expense and amortization, offset by $3 million 
decrease in investment income resulting from fair market value fluctuation of investments. Included in 
non-operating net expense is investment income (loss), consisting of interest earned on investment and 
the net change in the fair value of investments were $14 million and $1 million respectively in the 
current fiscal year, and $13 million and $5 respectively in the prior fiscal year. 

 Capital contributions decreased by $34 million. After a continued high rate of development since fiscal 
year 2017 and a record high in fiscal year 2019, System Capacity Charges decreased by $20 million and 
Wastewater Capacity Fees decreased by $8 million in fiscal year 2020 reflecting a slowdown in 
property development. The construction service installments decreased by $6 million compared to fiscal 
year 2019 due to slowdown of construction projects in the Oakland and Berkeley service areas. Grants 
and other reimbursements received remained stable in the current fiscal year compared to the prior year. 
Page 17 contains additional capital contributions information. 
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In the previous fiscal year, the District’s total operating revenue of $647 million for the year increased by 
$48 million and total operating expense of $432 million for the year increased by $2 million. The change in 
net position (including capital contributions) increased from $210 million in fiscal year 2018 to $279 million 
in the fiscal year 2019. The District’s total net position increased from $1,630 million to $1,889 million 
during the fiscal year 2019, after a $19 million decrease of prior period adjustments in net position for debt 
refunding costs and capitalization of Wastewater System inventories..   
The major components of the District’s results of operations in fiscal year 2019 were: 

 Water revenue increased by $40 million or 8% due to a 9% water rate increase at the beginning of fiscal 
year 2019, offset by a 1% decrease in billed water consumption. 

 Wastewater revenue increased by $4 million or 4% primarily due to a 5% wastewater rate increase at 
the beginning of fiscal year 2019. 

 Operating expense remained stable, primarily as increases of $4 million in raw water expenses,  
$4 million in water treatment and distribution, $5 million in financial and risk management (primarily 
liabilities claims), $4 million in depreciation on utility plant and vehicle, were offset by decreases of  
$7 million in general administration and $8 million in pension expense.  

 Net nonoperating expense decreased by $11 million, primarily due to an $11 million increase in 
investment income resulting from fair market value increase of investments. Included in non-operating 
net expense is investment income (loss), consisting of interest earned on investment and the net change 
in the fair value of investments were $13 million and $5 million respectively in fiscal year 2019, and  
$9 million and ($2) respectively in fiscal year 2018. 

 Capital contributions increased by $12 million primarily reflecting a $4 million increase in System 
Capacity Charges and an $2 million increase in Wastewater Capacity Fees due to increasing  
multi-family dwelling projects, particularly in the Oakland and Berkeley service areas. The construction 
service installments increased by $8 million compared to fiscal year 2018 due to increased construction 
projects in the Oakland and Berkeley service areas. Grants and other reimbursements received 
decreased by $2 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to fiscal year 2018. Page 17 contains additional 
capital contributions information. 
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Table 2 shows changes in the District’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018: 

Table 2

Changes in Net Position

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

2020 2019 Variance %

Operating Revenue:
Water 567,394$      520,344$      47,050$        9% 
Sewer 91,956          90,323          1,633           2% 
Power 7,223           11,272          (4,049)          (36)%
Wet weather facilities charges 27,090          25,113          1,977           8% 

Total operating revenue 693,663        647,052        46,611          7% 

Operating Expense:
Raw water 53,246          44,626          8,620           19% 
Water treatment & distribution 126,647        117,557        9,090           8% 
Recreation areas, net 6,674           6,126           548              9% 
Sewer lines & pumps 16,365          15,881          484              3% 
Sewer treatment plant operations 41,504          37,954          3,550           9% 
Customer accounting & collecting 19,922          20,282          (360)             (2)%
Financial and risk management 25,550          23,069          2,481           11% 
Facilities management 5,980           5,020           960              19% 
General administration 31,722          36,843          (5,121)          (14)%
Pension expense 14,523          (18,259)        32,782          (180)%
OPEB expense (3,984)          (3,312)          (672)             20% 
Depreciation (excluding amounts

reported within the Water and
Wastewater operations) 136,631        131,997        4,634           4% 

Amortization 13,252          14,401          (1,149)          (8)%

Total operating expense 488,032        432,185        55,847          13% 

Net operating income (expense) 205,631        214,867        (9,236)          (4)%

Nonoperating income (expense):
Investment income 14,902          18,105          (3,203)          (18)%
Taxes & subventions 46,626          41,565          5,061           12% 
Interest & amortization of bond 

expenses, net (113,506)       (119,574)       6,068           (5)%
Increase (decrease) of Equity in JPA partnership fund (3,325)          (3,545)          220              (6)%
Other income 16,194          15,928          266              2% 

Total nonoperating income (expense), net (39,109)        (47,521)        8,412           (18)%

Income (loss) before
contributions 166,522        167,346        (824)             (0)%

Capital contributions 77,623          111,350        (33,727)        (30)%

Change in net position 244,145        278,696        (34,551)        (12)%

Total net position – beginning 1,889,262     1,629,890     259,372        16% 

Prior Period adjustment - Debt Refunding -                  (23,802)        23,802          N/A

Changes in accounting estimates -                  4,478           (4,478)          N/A

Total net position – ending 2,133,407$   1,889,262$   244,145$      13% 
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Table 2 (Continued)

Changes in Net Position

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

2019 2018 Variance %

Operating Revenue:
Water 520,344$      480,745$      39,599$        8% 
Sewer 90,323          86,514          3,809           4% 
Power 11,272          7,544           3,728           49% 
Wet weather facilities charges 25,113          24,293          820              3% 

Total operating revenue 647,052        599,096        47,956          8% 

Operating Expense:
Raw water 44,626          40,349          4,277           11% 
Water treatment & distribution 117,557        113,422        4,135           4% 
Recreation areas, net 6,126           5,682           444              8% 
Sewer lines & pumps 15,881          13,422          2,459           18% 
Sewer treatment plant operations 37,954          38,220          (266)             (1)%
Customer accounting & collecting 20,282          19,434          848              4% 
Financial and risk management 23,069          17,518          5,551           32% 
Facilities management 5,020           5,523           (503)             (9)%
General administration 36,843          43,839          (6,996)          (16)%
Pension expense (18,259)        (10,183)        (8,076)          79% 
OPEB expense (3,312)          (1,153)          (2,159)          187% 
Depreciation (excluding amounts

reported within the Water and
Wastewater operations) 131,997        128,076        3,921           3% 

Amortization 14,401          16,197          (1,796)          (11)%

Total operating expense 432,185        430,346        1,839           0% 

Net operating income (expense) 214,867        168,750        46,117          27% 

Nonoperating income (expense):
Investment income 18,105          7,131           10,974          154% 
Taxes & subventions 41,565          41,480          85                0% 
Interest & amortization of bond 

expenses, net (119,574)       (120,719)       1,145           (1)%
Increase (decrease) of Equity in JPA partnership fund (3,545)          (3,380)          (165)             5% 
Other income 15,928          17,420          (1,492)          (9)%

Total nonoperating income (expense), net (47,521)        (58,068)        10,547          (18)%

Income (loss) before
contributions 167,346        110,682        56,664          51% 

Capital contributions 111,350        98,997          12,353          12% 

Change in net position 278,696        209,679        69,017          33% 

Total net position – beginning 1,629,890     1,528,383     101,507        7% 

Prior Period adjustment per implementation of GASB 75 -                  (108,172)       108,172        N/A

Prior Period adjustment - Debt Refunding (23,802)        -                  (23,802)        N/A

Changes in accounting estimates 4,478           -                  4,478           N/A

Total net position – ending 1,889,262$   1,629,890$   259,372$      16% 
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Liquidity 

The District had $733 million in combined current and noncurrent District Cash and Investments as of  
June 30, 2020, a decrease of $33 million compared to $766 million as of June 30, 2019.  Components of cash 
and investments for the year ended June 30, 2020 were: 

 Water System total combined current and noncurrent cash and investments decreased by $26 million 
compared to the same date of the previous fiscal year. Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents increased by $258 million compared to the prior year. This was primarily due to an 
increase of $442 million in net proceeds from the sale and purchase of securities in investing 
activities, and an increase of $50 million in operating activities offset by an increase of $239 million 
in net cash from capital and related financing activities. Net increase (decrease) in noncurrent 
investments decreased by $5 million was primarily due to reallocation of investments between short-
term and long-term. 
 

 Wastewater System total combined current and noncurrent cash and investments decreased by $7 
million compared to the same date in the previous fiscal year. Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents decreased by $24 million compared to the prior year. This was primarily due to a 
decrease of $7 million from operating activities, an increase of $5 million spending to pay-down 
extended commercial paper in capital and related financing activities, and a decrease of $13 million 
from the reallocation of investments between short-term and long-term. Net increase (decrease) in 
noncurrent investments decreased by $12 million also primarily due to reallocation of investments 
between short-term and long-term. 
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Table 3 shows the District’s cash flow for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018: 
 

2020 2019 Variance %

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 178,179$       100,943$       77,236$         77% 
Net cash provided by operating activities 387,106         343,354         43,752           13% 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 46,626           41,565           5,061             12% 
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 

related financing activities (483,752)        (239,902)        (243,850)        102% 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 361,564         (67,781)          429,345         (633)%
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 311,544         77,236           234,308         303% 
End of period 489,723$      178,179$      311,544$       175% 

Investments:

Beginning of year 588,161$       502,698$       85,463$         17% 

Net increase (decrease) in investments (345,191)        85,463           (430,654)        (504)%

End of period 242,970$       588,161$       (345,191)$      (59)%

Total District Cash and Investments 732,693$       766,340$       (33,647)$        (4)%

(In thousands)

Table 3
Cash Flows

Water and Wastewater System
June 30, 2020 and 2019

 
 

2019 2018 Variance %

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 100,943$       269,057$       (168,114)$      (62)%
Net cash provided by operating activities 343,354         342,147         1,207             0% 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 41,565           41,480           85                  0% 
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 

related financing activities (239,902)        (453,499)        213,597         (47)%
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (67,781)          (98,242)          30,461           (31)%
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 77,236           (168,114)        245,350         (146)%
End of period 178,179$      100,943$      77,236$         77% 

Investments:

Beginning of year 502,698$       398,759$       103,939$       26% 

Net increase (decrease) in investments 85,463           103,939         (18,476)          (18)%

End of period 588,161$       502,698$       85,463$         17% 

Total District Cash and Investments 766,340$       603,641$       162,699$       27% 

(In thousands)

Table 3
Cash Flows

Water and Wastewater System
June 30, 2019 and 2018
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Cash and Investments by Fund 
 
In fiscal years 2020 and 2019, total cash and investments available for operating and capital activities are 
reported in current and noncurrent assets as unrestricted and restricted funds.  Significant activities in current 
fiscal year were as follows: the Water System spent $24 million in capital reserves to pay down commercial 
paper and $5 million in funds received for construction. Wastewater System spent $5 million in capital 
reserves to pay down extendable commercial paper.  
 
In the previous fiscal year, significant activities were as follows: Water System increased reserves of  
$3 million in working capital, $172 million in capital reserves to fund capital projects and equipment and use 
of $5 million in funds received for construction. Wastewater System increased $5 million in capital reserves 
to fund capital projects and equipment.  
  
Operating and Capital Reserves are components of Unrestricted Cash and Investments. Individual funds 
within Operating and Capital Reserves are funded pursuant to Board policy but are unrestricted as to use. The 
Unrestricted Reserve Balances indicate the District’s ability to meet unanticipated revenue declines or 
expenditure increases. Unrestricted reserves are committed by the Board of Directors. This is distinct from 
restricted reserves which are legally constrained by law or by third party. For additional information, see  
Note 1H to the financial statements.  
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Table 4 shows the District’s cash and investment by fund for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 
2018: 

Table 4

Cash and Investment by Fund

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Amount %

Unrestricted cash and investment
Operating reserves:

Rate stabilization fund 95,000$     95,000$    24,090$    24,090$    119,090$  119,090$  -$              0%
Working capital reserve 74,800       72,400     18,800     18,300     93,600     90,700     2,900        3%
Self-insurance 7,753         7,374       1,202       1,116       8,955       8,490        465           5%
Workers compensation 6,099         5,727       945          867          7,044       6,594        450           7%

Total operating reserves 183,652     180,501   45,037     44,373     228,689   224,874   3,815        2%
Capital reserves:

Reserved for capital projects 384,050     411,964   21,067     38,813     405,117   450,777   (45,660)     (10)%
Reserve funded CIP - Wastewater -                -               15,336     15,093     15,336     15,093     243           2%
Vehicle replacements 13,484       9,088       -               -               13,484     9,088        4,396        48%
Equipment replacements 2,580         2,657       26,589     17,587     29,169     20,244     8,925        44%

Total capital reserves 400,114     423,709   62,992     71,493     463,106   495,202   (32,096)     (6)%

Total Unrestricted cash and investment 583,766     604,210     108,029     115,866     691,795     720,076     (28,281)     (4)%

Restricted Cash and Investments
Bond interest and redemption fund 457            844          21            18            478          862           (384)          (45)%
Debt service reserve fund 3,763         3,719       -               -               3,763       3,719        44             1%
Funds received for construction 33,827       38,931     -               -               33,827     38,931     (5,104)       (13)%
FERC partnership fund 2,276         2,203       -               -               2,276       2,203        73             3%
Monetary reserve 554            549          -               -               554          549           5               1%

Total restricted cash and investments 40,877       46,246     21            18            40,898     46,264     (5,366)       (12)%

Total District Cash and Investments 624,643$   650,456$   108,050$   115,884$   732,693$   766,340$   (33,647)$   (4)%

 
Table 4

Cash and Investment by Fund

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Amount %

Unrestricted cash and investment
Operating reserves:

Rate stabilization fund 95,000$     95,000$    24,090$    24,090$    119,090$  119,090$  -$              0%
Working capital reserve 72,400       69,100     18,300     17,600     90,700     86,700      4,000         5%
Self-insurance 7,374         6,974       1,116       1,135       8,490       8,109        381            5%
Workers compensation 5,727         5,422       867          883          6,594       6,305        289            5%

Total operating reserves 180,501     176,496   44,373     43,708     224,874   220,204   4,670         2%
Capital reserves:

Reserved for capital projects 411,964     254,186   38,813     35,731     450,777   289,917   160,860     55%
Reserve funded CIP - Wastewater -                -               15,093     14,803     15,093     14,803      290            2%
Vehicle replacements 9,088         7,387       -               -               9,088       7,387        1,701         23%
Equipment replacements 2,657         3,190       17,587     18,007     20,244     21,197      (953)          (4)%

Total capital reserves 423,709     264,763   71,493     68,541     495,202   333,304   161,898     49%

Total Unrestricted cash and investment 604,210     441,259     115,866     112,249     720,076     553,508     166,568     30%

Restricted Cash and Investments
Bond interest and redemption fund 844            97            18            18            862          115           747            650%
Debt service reserve fund 3,719         3,654       -               -               3,719       3,654        65              2%
Funds received for construction 38,931       43,659     -               -               38,931     43,659      (4,728)       (11)%
FERC partnership fund 2,203         2,164       -               -               2,203       2,164        39              2%
Monetary reserve 549            541          -               -               549          541           8                1%

Total restricted cash and investments 46,246       50,115     18            18            46,264     50,133      (3,869)       (8)%

Total District Cash and Investments 650,456$   491,374$   115,884$   112,267$   766,340$   603,641$   162,699$   27%
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Capital Contributions 
Capital contributions primarily consist of System Capacity Charges (SCCs) and Wastewater Capacity Fees 
(WCFs). In addition, the District can receive contributions when the District’s facilities need to be relocated 
during construction projects. The District also receives state and federal grants to fund capital projects.   
 
The Water System’s SCCs consist of charges collected from all applicants who request a new water service 
connection or a larger water meter size. These charges vary depending on geographic region. The SCC pays 
for the applicant's share of District capital facilities, including those that serve the entire water system such as 
the aqueducts and raw water facilities, regional facilities such as treatment plants and distribution facilities, 
and future water supply upgrades needed to meet long-term increases in water demand created by new 
customers. The portion of the SCC that pays for the future water supply is restricted and the remainder is 
unrestricted. 
 
The Wastewater System’s WCFs are treated as unrestricted funds and pay for the applicant’s share of 
Wastewater facilities including the main wastewater treatment plant, interceptors, and wet weather facilities.  

Capital contributions decreased $34 million or 30% as compared to the previous fiscal year. After a continued 
high rate of development since fiscal year 2017 and a record high in fiscal year 2019, SCCs decreased by $20 
million and WCFs decreased by $8 million in fiscal year 2020 reflecting a slowdown in property 
development. Earned contribution decreased by $6 million also due to slowdown of construction projects in 
the Oakland and Berkeley service areas. Grants and other reimbursements remained stable in the current fiscal 
year compared to the prior year. 

Table 5 shows the District’s capital contributions received for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 
2018:  

Table 5
Capital Contributions

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Amount %

System capacity charges 53,307$   73,496$   -$            -$             53,307$   73,496$     (20,189)$   (27)%
Wastewater capacity fees -               -               5,697       13,260     5,697       13,260       (7,563)       (57)%
Earned contributions on construction 17,780     23,750     -              (52)           17,780     23,698       (5,918)       (25)%
Grants and other reimbursements 839          896          -              -               839          896            (57)            (6)%

Totals 71,926$   98,142$   5,697$     13,208$   77,623$   111,350$   (33,727)$   (30)%
 

Table 5
Capital Contributions

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Amount %

System capacity charges 73,496$   69,270$   -$             -$             73,496$    69,270$   4,226$      6%
Wastewater capacity fees -              -             13,260   11,418   13,260    11,418    1,842        16%
Earned contributions on construction 23,750     15,518   (52)         16          23,698    15,534    8,164        53%
Grants and other reimbursements 896          2,775     -             -             896         2,775      (1,879)       (68)%

Totals 98,142$   87,563$   13,208$   11,434$   111,350$  98,997$   12,353$    12%
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CAPITAL ASSETS 

The District had $5.2 billion (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad range of utility capital 
assets as of June 30, 2020.  Total capital assets were $5.1 billion as of June 30, 2019.  The investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, water treatment plants, filter plants, aqueducts, water 
transmission and distribution mains, water storage facilities, pump stations, water reclamation facilities, 
wastewater and wet weather treatment facilities, machinery and equipment. In the current fiscal year, capital 
assets increased by $187 million or 4% over the prior fiscal year.  In fiscal year 2019, capital assets increased 
by $195 million or 4% over fiscal year 2018. Annual changes are consistent with the District’s capital 
improvement program.  

The Water System had $4.5 billion (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad range of utility 
capital assets as of June 30, 2020. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, 
water treatment plants, filter plants, aqueducts, water transmission and distribution mains, water storage 
facilities, power generation, pump stations, water reclamation facilities, machinery and equipment.   

The Wastewater System had $758 million (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad range of 
utility capital assets as of June 30, 2020. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
improvements, power generation, wastewater and wet weather treatment facilities, machinery and equipment. 

Table 6 shows the District’s capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018: 

Table 6

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase/(decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Amount %

Structures, buildings,
and equipment 3,908,424$    3,716,296$    638,147$       651,379$       4,546,571$    4,367,675$    178,896$       4.1%

Land and rights of way 73,790           70,917           21,409           21,409           95,199           92,326           2,873             3.1%
Construction work in

progress 497,634         522,919         98,466           68,192           596,100         591,111         4,989             0.8%

Totals 4,479,848$    4,310,132$    758,022$       740,980$       5,237,870$    5,051,112$    186,758$       3.7%
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Table 6 (Continued)

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase/(decrease)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Amount %

Structures, buildings,
and equipment 3,716,296$    3,602,573$    651,379$       650,584$       4,367,675$    4,253,157$    114,518$       2.7%

Land and rights of way 70,917           65,001           21,409           21,357           92,326           86,358           5,968             6.9%
Construction work in

progress 522,919         472,446         68,192           43,946           591,111         516,392         74,719           14.5%

Totals 4,310,132$    4,140,020$    740,980$       715,887$       5,051,112$    4,855,907$    195,205$       4.0%

 

The District’s net revenue, long-term debt, and contributions from customers are used to finance capital 
investments. More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 3 to the basic 
financial statements. 

This year’s major capital expenditures included:   

Water System:
Pipeline Infrastrucure Renewals 51,360$          
Reservoir Rehab/Maintenance 51,005           
Treatment Plant Upgrades 40,884           
Pumping Plant Rehabilitation 40,164           
Open Cut Reservoir Rehab 31,753           
Maloney PZ Improvements 24,553           
Trench Soils Storage Sites 23,725           
Administration Building Modifications 20,811           
Additional Supplemental Supply Projects 15,878           
Pipeline Infrastructure Renew Historic 15,053           
Service Lateral Replacements 14,324           
West of Hills Master Plan 14,167           
Large Diameter Pipelines 13,649           
Mokelumne Aqueduct No 2 & 3 Relining Project 11,125           
Raw Water Studies and Improvements 9,978              
SRV Recycled Water Program 9,482              
WTTIP Water Treatment Plant Improvements 8,714              
Pipeline Relocations 6,086              
Water Conservation Project 5,737              
Raw Water Aqueduct O&M Improvements 5,378              

Wastewater System:
General Wastewater 22,270$          
Interceptors and Pump Stations 20,208           
Primary Treatment 14,193           
Digesters 14,091           
Preliminary Treatment 6,825              
Power Generation and Biogas 3,847              
Resource Recovery 3,302              
Wet Weather Facilities 3,047              
Utilities and Sitework 2,884              
Effluent Discharge 2,481              
Electricals and Controls 1,977              
Nutrients 1,832                
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The District had total long-term debt outstanding of $3.4 billion as of June 30, 2020, a 3% decrease from  
June 30, 2019.  Total long-term debt outstanding was $3.5 billion as of June 30, 2019, a 4% increase from 
June 30, 2018.  Components of the District’s long-term debt portfolio as of June 30, 2020 are: 

 The Water System had total long-term debt outstanding of $3.0 billion.  
 The Wastewater System had total long-term debt outstanding of $394 million. 

Table 7 shows the District’s long-term debt outstanding for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, and 
2018: 

Table 7
Long -Term Debt

(Net of Unamortized Costs)

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2020 and 2019

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 Amount %

Revenue bonds* 2,639,641$    2,733,864$    383,781$       398,605$       3,023,422$    3,132,469$    (109,047)$      (3)%
Commercial paper 335,800         359,800         10,000           15,000           345,800         374,800         (29,000)          (8)%
Loans 35,069           12,886           -                     -                     35,069           12,886           22,183           172%

Totals 3,010,510$    3,106,550$    393,781$       413,605$       3,404,291$    3,520,155$    (115,864)$      (3)%

Table 7
Long -Term Debt

(Net of Unamortized Costs)

Water and Wastewater

June 30, 2019 and 2018

(In thousands)

Water System Wastewater System Total Increase (decrease)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Amount %

Revenue bonds* 2,733,864$    2,592,137$    398,605$       407,937$       3,132,469$    3,000,074$    132,395$       4%
Commercial paper 359,800         359,800         15,000           15,000           374,800         374,800         -                     0%
Loans 12,886           14,061           -                     -                     12,886           14,061           (1,175)            (8)%

Totals 3,106,550$    2,965,998$    413,605$       422,937$       3,520,155$    3,388,935$    131,220$       4%

 

*Includes unamortized bond premium and discount. For Water System, the unamortized bond premium was $243 million, 
$272 million, and $232 million as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. For Wastewater System, the net of 
unamortized bond premium and discount was $25 million, $29 million, and $28 million as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively.
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It is the policy of the District to maintain a reasonable balance between debt and current revenue financing of 
capital projects. The following targets provide the framework for financing capital projects: 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: Maintain an annual revenue bond debt service coverage ratio of at least 
1.6 times. As of June 30, 2020, the coverage ratio for Water was 2.28 and for Wastewater was 2.59; the 
overall District ratio was 2.32. 

Debt-Funded Capital Spending: Limit debt-funded capital to no more than 65% of the total capital program 
over each five-year planning period. As of June 30, 2020, the percentage of debt-funded capital spending for 
Water was 34% and for Wastewater was 10%; the overall District percentage was 31%.    

Extendable Commercial Paper and Un-hedged Variable Rate Debt: Maintain an annual limit of 25% of 
outstanding long-term debt. As of June 30, 2020, the percentage of extended commercial paper and  
un-hedged variable rate debt compared to total outstanding long-term debt for Water was 12% and for 
Wastewater was 3%; the overall District percentage was 11%.  

Revenue-supported debt authorization for the District can be approved by the District’s Board of Directors, 
subject to a referendum process. At June 30, 2020, the Water System had $602 million and the Wastewater 
System had $186 million in authorized but unissued revenue bonds.   

The District’s credit ratings are outlined in Table 8. 

Moody’s
Standard & Investors

District debt by type Poor’s Service Fitch

Water system:
Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds AAA Aa1 AA+
Variable Rate Revenue Bonds

Long-term Underlying Rating AAA Aa1 -
Short-Term Rating A-1/A-1+ VMIG-1 -

Commercial Paper Notes A-1+ P-1 -

Wastewater system:
Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds AAA Aa1 AA+
Extendable Commercial Paper A-1+ P-1 F1+

Table 8

Rating by
June 30, 2020

Water and Wastewater

Credit Ratings

 

For detail credit rating by bond issue, please visit our website at http://www.ebmud.com.  

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 to the financial statements. 
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide ratepayers and creditors with a general overview of the District’s 
finances and demonstrate the District’s accountability for the monies it receives. If you have any questions 
about this report or need additional information, please contact: the Controller, Accounting Division,  
P.O. Box 24055, Oakland, CA 94623-1055 or visit our website at http://www.ebmud.com.  
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Assets:

57,852$             42,729$            
Invested securities lending collateral (Note 2) 80,731               48,857              
Prepaid expenses 575                    560                   
Receivables:

Brokers, securities sold 475                    1,647                
Employer 2,246                 1,674                
Plan members 484                    357                   
Interest, dividends and recoverable taxes 4,707                 4,300                

Total Receivables 7,912                 7,978                

Investments, at fair value (Note 2):
U.S. government obligations 143,915             95,799              
Municipal bonds 705                    1,871                
Domestic corporate bonds 298,975             342,052            
International bonds 19,793               23,291              
Domestic stocks 849,826             819,025            
International stocks 397,426             415,642            
Real estate 95,649               98,133              

Total Investments 1,806,289          1,795,813         

Total Assets 1,953,359          1,895,937         

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,396                 2,757                
Payables to brokers, securities purchased 12,623               11,358              
Securities lending collateral (Note 2) 80,731               48,857              

Total Liabilities 95,750               62,972              

Net Position:
Restricted for pension benefits 1,813,591          1,792,124         
Restricted for post-employment healthcare benefits 44,018               40,841              

Total Net Position 1,857,609$        1,832,965$       

 2019  2020 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents, at fair value (Note 2)

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

31



Additions:
Contributions:

Employers 88,734$          84,551$            
Plan members 18,885            17,865              

Total Contributions 107,619          102,416            

Investment Income:
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value investments:

Traded securities 13,251            67,474              
Real estate 688                 1,667                

Interest 14,341            11,295              
Dividends 16,360            17,785              
Real estate operating income, net 1,990              1,245                

Total Investment Income 46,630            99,466              

Less:
Investment expense (4,864)            (4,993)              
Borrowers' rebates and other agent fees

on securities lending transactions (903)               (1,219)              

Net Investment Income 40,863            93,254              

Total Additions, net 148,482          195,670            

Deductions:
Benefits paid 121,889          114,168            
Refunds of contributions 462                 267                   
Administrative expenses 1,487              1,510                

Total Deductions 123,838          115,945            

Changes in Net Position 24,644            79,725              

Net Position - Beginning of the Year 1,832,965       1,753,240         

Net Position - End of the Year 1,857,609$     1,832,965$       

 2019  2020 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

32



A. Description of the Primary Government 

B. Description of the Component Unit 

C. Basis of Presentation  
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D. Basis of Accounting 

operating non-operating 

Balance Sheet

34



Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

E. Use of Estimates and Assumptions 

F. Capital Assets 

35



G. Depreciation

H. Restricted Assets 

Operating Reserves

36



 
Capital Reserves: 

37



I. Deferred Amount on Bond Refundings

 
J. Cash and Cash Equivalents  

K. District Investments

38



 
L. Retirement System Investments 

39



M. Material and Supplies 

N. Revenue 

40



O.   Interest Rate Swap 

P. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

Q.   Fair Value Measurements
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A. Classification 

District Enterprise Funds:

System Pension Trust  Funds:

District Enterprise Funds:

System Pension Trust  Funds:

B. District Enterprise Fund Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the 
District’s Investment Policy

42



C.  District Enterprise Fund Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 

43



D. Employees Retirement System Authorized Investment Strategy  

44



E. Fair Value Hierarchy 

District Enterprise Funds: 

Cash in banks

45



Cash in banks
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System Pension Trust Fund: 
 

 
 

47



F.   Interest Rate Risk

48



 
District Enterprise Funds: 

 

   Cash in banks

   Cash in banks
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System Pension Trust Fund: 
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G. Credit Risk 

51



 
District Enterprise Funds: 

Not rated by Moody's:

Not rated by Moody's:
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System Pension Trust Fund: 
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H. Concentration Risk 
 

District Enterprise Funds:

District Enterprise Funds:
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System Pension Trust Fund: 

 
I. Foreign Currency Risk  
 

System Pension Trust Fund: 
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J. Custodial Credit Risk 

cash on deposits

investments

56



securities instruments
book entry

 

K.   Joint Powers Authority and Partnership Funds 

57



A. Summary 
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B. Additions and Retirements

Water System:

Wastewater System:
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Water System:

Wastewater System:
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C. Construction in Progress 

Water System:

Wastewater System:
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Water System:

Wastewater System:
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

   

 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A. Composition and Changes 
  

The District generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have 
useful lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The District’s debt issues and transactions are 
summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter. 
 
The District’s debt issues and transactions during fiscal year 2019-2020 are summarized below. 
 

Original Issue 
Amount

Balance
June 30,

2019 Additions Retirements

Balance
June 30,

2020

Amount due 
within one 

year

Water System Revenue Bonds:
Subordinated Series 2008 A
    1.55% variable rate, due 6/1/38 322,525$         105,250$      -$                     -$                  105,250$          -$                
Subordinated Series 2010 A
    3.00 - 5.00%, due 6/1/36 192,830           2,090            -                       2,090            -                       -                  
Subordinated Series 2010 B
    5.87%, due 6/1/40 400,000           400,000        -                       -                    400,000            -                  
Series 2012 A (Private Placement)
   5.00% , due 6/1/37 191,750           81,750          -                       -                    81,750              -                  
Series 2012 B
   1.00 -5.00%, due 6/1/26 358,620           178,740        -                       45,160          133,580            47,190         
Series 2013 A
   5.00%, due 6/1/21 48,670             14,780          -                       7,195            7,585                7,585           
Series 2014 A
   3.00-5.00%, due 6/1/35 128,315           128,315        -                       -                    128,315            -                  
Series 2014 B
   2.00-5.00%, due 6/1/30 242,730           216,985        -                       8,720            208,265            9,080           
Series 2014 C
   5.00%, due 6/1/44 75,000             75,000          -                       -                    75,000              -                  
Series 2015 A
   4.00-5.00%, due 6/1/37 429,360           429,360        -                       -                    429,360            -                  
Series 2015 B
   4.00-5.00%, due 6/1/45 74,335             74,335          -                       -                    74,335              -                  
Series 2015C
   4.00-5.00%, due 6/1/45 110,715           110,715        -                       -                    110,715            -                  
Series 2017 A
3.00 - 5.00%, due 6/1/45 185,355           185,355        -                       -                    185,355            -                  
Series 2017 B
3.00 - 5.00%, due 6/1/37 309,665           297,130        -                       -                    297,130            970              
Series 2019 A
5.00%, due 6/1/49 161,820           161,820        -                       2,270            159,550            2,560           

    Total water long-term bonds 2,461,625     -                       65,435          2,396,190         67,385         

 

65



Wastewater System Revenue Bonds:

Water Loans (Direct Borrowings):
State Water Resources Control Board

Commercial Paper (see Note 6)
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Water System Revenue Bonds:

67



Wastewater System Revenue Bonds:

Water Loans (Direct Borrowings):
State Water Resources Control Board

Commercial Paper (see Note 6)

68



 
B. Description of the District’s Long-Term Debt Issues 

69



C. Debt Service Requirements 

70



 
D.  Prior-Year Defeasances 
 

 
 
E. Variable Rate Debt 

71



 
F. Interest Rate Swap Agreements 

 

 
Term and credit risks. 

Fair value.  

72



 
Credit risk.

Basis risk.  

 
Termination risk.  

 
Swap payments and associated debt.

73



Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted 

Unrestricted
 

A. Description  

B. Retirement Benefits and Allowances 

74



C. Post-Employment Healthcare Cost 

75



 
D. Actuarial Assumptions and Funding Policy 
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E.   Contributions Required and Contributions Made 

79



F. Net Pension Liability 

80
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H.   Net OPEB Liability 

83
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I.   Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) 
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Central Valley Project 

COVID-19 Pandemic  

92
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Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

97



Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

98



Includes inflation of 3.00% plus across the board salary increases of 0.50% plus merit and promotional
increases.

After Disability Retirement:

Pre-retirement

After Service Retirement and All Beneficiaries
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Includes inflation of 3.00% plus across the board salary increases of 0.50% plus merit and promotional
increases.

After Disability Retirement:

Pre-retirement

After Service Retirement and All Beneficiaries

100



101



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

102



Assets:

56,506$            1,346$              57,852$             42,729$            
Invested securities lending collateral 78,852              1,879                80,731               48,857              
Prepaid expenses -                        575                   575                    560                   
Receivables:

Brokers, securities sold 464                   11                     475                    1,647                
Employer 1,960                286                   2,246                 1,674                
Plan members 484                   -                       484                    357                   
Interest, dividends and recoverable taxes 4,597                110                   4,707                 4,300                

Total Receivables 7,505                407                   7,912                 7,978                

Investments, at fair value (Note 2):
U.S. government obligations 140,566            3,349                143,915             95,799              
Municipal bonds 689                   16                     705                    1,871                
Domestic corporate bonds 292,017            6,958                298,975             342,052            
International bonds 19,332              461                   19,793               23,291              
Domestic stocks 830,047            19,779              849,826             819,025            
International stocks 388,176            9,250                397,426             415,642            
Real estate 93,423              2,226                95,649               98,133              

Total Investments 1,764,250         42,039              1,806,289          1,795,813         

Total Assets 1,907,113         46,246              1,953,359          1,895,937         

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,341                55                     2,396                 2,757                
Payables to brokers, securities purchased 12,329              294                   12,623               11,358              
Securities lending collateral (Note 2) 78,852              1,879                80,731               48,857              

Total Liabilities 93,522              2,228                95,750               62,972              

Net position restricted for pension benefits
and post-employment healthcare
benefits 1,813,591         44,018              1,857,609          1,832,965         

Total Net Position 1,813,591$       44,018$            1,857,609$        1,832,965$       
See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents, at fair value              
(Note 2)

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM TRUST FUND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2020

(With summarized comparative financial information as of June 30, 2019)

 2019 
Total 

2020

 Pension plan 
benefits 

 Post-
employment 
healthcare 

benefits  Total 
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Additions:
Contributions:

Employers 77,645$            11,089$            88,734$            84,551$            
Plan members 18,690              195                   18,885              17,865              

Total Contributions 96,335              11,284              107,619            102,416            

Investment Income:
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value investments:

Traded securities 12,961              290                   13,251              67,474              
Real estate 673                   15                     688                   1,667                

Interest 14,027              314                   14,341              11,295              
Dividends 16,002              358                   16,360              17,785              
Real estate operating income, net 1,946                44                     1,990                1,245                

Total Investment Income 45,609              1,021                46,630              99,466              

Less:
Investment expense (4,753)              (111)                 (4,864)              (4,993)              
Borrowers' rebates and other agent fees

on securities lending transactions (883)                 (20)                   (903)                 (1,219)              

Net Investment Income 39,973              890                   40,863              93,254              

Total Additions, net 136,308            12,174              148,482            195,670            

Deductions:
Benefits paid 112,926            8,963                121,889            114,168            
Refunds of contributions 462                   -                       462                   267                   
Administrative expenses 1,453                34                     1,487                1,510                

Total Deductions 114,841            8,997                123,838            115,945            

Changes in Net Position 21,467              3,177                24,644              79,725              

Net Position - Beginning of the Year 1,792,124         40,841              1,832,965         1,753,240         

Net Position - End of the Year 1,813,591$       44,018$            1,857,609$       1,832,965$       

 Total 
 Pension plan 

benefits 

 Post-
employment 
healthcare 

benefits 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM TRUST FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(With summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2019)
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

 2019 
Total 

2020
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant 
deficiency
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August 31, 2020 
 
To the Board of Directors 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Oakland, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund 
information, of the East Bay Municipal Utility District (the District) for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as 
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated 
such information in our letter to you date May 15, 2020. Professional standards also require that we 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in the notes to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during fiscal 
year 2019-2020. 
 
We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial 
statements were: 
 

Management’s estimates of its net pension liability and net other post-employment 
benefits liability based on actuarial valuation specialist assumptions. The District’s claims 
liability is based on the District Attorney’s estimate of current and potential litigation, as 
well as actuarial studies provided for the District. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the net pension liability, net other postemployment benefits 
liability and claims liability in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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To the Board of Directors 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Oakland, California 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated August 31, 2020. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention.  
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes 
in employer’s net pension liability, the schedule of employer’s net pension liability, the schedule of 
employer’s contributions – pension plan, the schedule of investment returns, the schedule of changes in 
employer’s net OPEB liability, the schedule of employer’s net OPEB liability, and the schedule of 
employer’s contributions – post-employment healthcare plan which are required supplementary 
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries 
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
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To the Board of Directors 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Oakland, California 
 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  
 
We were engaged to report on the combining balance sheet and combining statement of changes in net 
position for the Employees’ Retirement System Trust Fund which accompany the financial statements but 
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management 
and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements 
or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective 
for fiscal year 2019-2020 audit: 
 

GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance – 
The following pronouncements have been postponed as a temporary relieve to governments and 
other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and the new effective date are reflected in 
the following fiscal years. 
 
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and 
Direct Placements. 
 

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements are effective in the 
following fiscal year audit and should be reviewed for proper implementation by management: 

 
Fiscal year 2021 

 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. 
 
GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 14 
and 61. 
 

Fiscal year 2022 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. 
 

Fiscal year 2023 
 
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. 
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To the Board of Directors 
East Bay Municipal Utility District 
Oakland, California 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee, Board of Directors and 
management of East Bay Municipal Utility District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Sacramento, California 
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 FY20 ANNUAL BUDGET PERFORMANCE  
  
 
This section details the Fiscal Year 2020 budget performance for the Water and 
Wastewater Systems including an analysis of operating revenues and expenditures, 
major capital expenses, and a summary of grant / loan activities. 
 
 
District-wide Overview 
 
On March 17, 2020, the District declared an emergency to ensure its ability to respond 
rapidly to the changing circumstances related to COVID-19. The second half of FY20 
was impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and shelter-in-place orders which caused a 
reduction in revenues and increased expenses. In spite of the pandemic, FY20 ended 
with actual net revenue and expense savings greater than budget for both the water 
and wastewater systems. At the time of this report, much is still evolving and the 
potential impacts may be greater in FY21. Therefore the use of FY20 positive net 
revenue will help to offset possible FY21 shortfalls. 
 
 
Water System Overview 
 

 Revenues: Total revenues were greater than budget by $47.7 million.  

 Operating Expenses: Total operating expenses were less than budget by $36.1 
million. 

 Capital Expenses:  Total capital expenses were less than budget by $52.0 million.  
 
 
Wastewater System Overview  
 

 Revenues: Total revenues were greater than budget by $4.0 million. 

 Operating Expenses: Total operating expenses were less than budget by $5.7 
million. 

 Capital Expenses:  Total capital expenses were less than budget by $6.7 million. 
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WATER SYSTEM 
 
Summary of Revenues & Expenses 
 
The following chart compares budget to actuals. 
 

 Total revenues were $710.9 million or 107 percent of budgeted revenues of $663.2 million. 
 

 Total operating expenses and commitments were $493.8 million or 93 percent of the total 
amended budget of $529.9 million.  
 

 Total capital expenses were $285.7 million or 85 percent of the total budgeted cash flow of 
$337.7 million.  
 

 Actual net revenues and expense savings were stronger than forecasted, and could be 
used to offset possible deficits in Fiscal Year 2021 that may result from the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
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Water System Revenues 
 
The following charts show the various sources of Water System revenue in comparison to budget.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Water System Revenues ($ Millions) 

  
Amended 

Budget Actuals 
    Over / 
(Under)  % 

Water Charges 543.5 567.4 23.9 104% 

SCC Revenue 40.0 53.3 13.3 133% 

Property Taxes 35.0 40.3 5.3 115% 

All Other Revenue 18.2 18.8 0.6 103% 

Reimbursements 12.2 12.7 0.5 104% 

Interest Income 9.3 11.6 2.3 125% 

Power Sales 5.0 6.8 1.8 135% 

Total Revenues 663.2 710.9 47.7 107% 
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At year-end, all revenue sources were greater than budgeted. Major revenue variances were: 
 

 Water Charges were $567.4 million or 104 percent of budget. The FY20 budget was 
based on billed water consumption of 141 million gallons per day (MGD). Actual water 
consumption was 147.8 MGD or 6.8 MGD greater than budget, and an increase of 3.6 
percent compared to FY19 billed consumption of 142.7 MGD.  

 
 SCC Revenues were $53.3 million or 133 percent of budget. The FY20 budget was 

increased by $12 million or 43 percent from the prior year in anticipation of continued 
significant building activity. A strong third quarter yielding $22.1 million mitigated impacts 
of the shelter-in-place order in the fourth quarter. 
 

 Property Taxes were $40.3 million or 115 percent of budget due to conservative 
assumptions of property tax growth and a $1.17 million delayed payment of FY19 
revenues. 

 
 Interest Income was $11.6 million or 125 percent of budget due to proceeds from bonds 

issued at the end of FY19 available for investment which compensated for lower interest 
rates. In the fourth quarter rates reached low levels not experienced since the third quarter 
of FY16, and interest earnings recorded declined to the lowest level since the fourth 
quarter of FY17 but were offset due to the size of the portfolio. 

 
 Power Sales were $6.8 million or 135 percent of budget due to high reservoir levels at the 

end of FY19 which resulted in additional power generation. 
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Water System Operating Expenses and Commitments 
 
The following charts depict operating budget spending by type for the Water System. Total 
operating expenses and commitments were $493.8 million or 93 percent of the total amended 
budget of $529.9 million.  
 

 
 

 

Water System 
Operating Expenses & Commitments ($ Millions) 

  Amended 
Budget Actuals 

    Over / 
(Under)  % 

Operations 297.7  274.4  (23.3) 92% 

Debt Service 232.2  219.4  (12.8) 94% 

Total Operating 529.9  493.8  (36.1) 93% 

   
 
Total operating expenses were 7.0 percent less than budget. Major variances were: 
 

 Operations savings were $23.3 million primarily attributable to the recruitment lead time to 
fill vacancies; lower than planned spending such as energy, Chevron operations and 
hatchery operations; suspension or reduction of some operations due to COVID including 
contract work, paving, training conferences, and travel; higher than budgeted 
reimbursement for the administration of capital which decreases operating expense by a 
like amount; and unspent contingency. Savings were partially offset due to increased 
expenses associated with the pandemic such as the temporary assignment of field staff 
that normally performs capital-related work assigned to rotation shifting labor costs from 
capital to operating and the settlement of a significant self-insured liability claim.  

 

 Debt Service savings were $12.8 million primarily due to lower interest rates than 
assumed in the budget and lower interest expenses in the fourth quarter resulting from the 
pay-down of commercial paper in the second half of the fiscal year. 
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Water System Capital Cash Flow Expenses 
 

Capital expenditures totaled $285.7 million or 85 percent of budgeted cash flow of $337.7 million. 
Of this amount, direct costs totaled $230.3 million and the remaining $55.4 million represents the 
administration of capital expenses. Spending was less than planned due to various project delays 
and impacts from the shelter-in-place orders.  
 
The chart below illustrates the direct capital spending for major projects.  
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WASTEWATER SYSTEM 
 
Summary of Revenues & Expenses 
 
The following chart compares budget to actuals for revenues, operating expenses and 
commitments and capital expenses.  
 

 Total Wastewater System revenues were $144.2 million or 103 percent of budgeted 
revenues of $140.2 million. 

 
 Total operating expenses and commitments were $104.6 million or 95 percent of the 

amended budget of $110.3 million. 
  

 Total capital expenses were $41.8 million or 86 percent of the budgeted cash flow of $48.5 
million.  

 
 Similar to the Water System, actual net revenues and expense savings were stronger than 

forecasted, and could be used to offset possible deficits in Fiscal Year 2021 that may 
result from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
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Wastewater System Revenues 
 
The following charts show the various sources of Wastewater System revenue in comparison to 
budget.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Wastewater System Revenues ($ Millions) 

  Amended 
Budget Actuals 

Over / 
(Under) % 

Treatment Charges & Permits 79.4 79.9  0.5  101% 

Wet Weather 27.5 27.1  (0.3) 99% 

Resource Recovery 10.0 12.1  2.1  121% 

Reimbursements & All Other 7.2 7.2  0.0  100% 

Property Taxes 5.4 6.3  0.9  116% 

Capacity Charges (WCF) 4.0 5.7  1.7  142% 

Laboratory Services 4.4 4.7  0.3  107% 

Interest Income 2.4 1.3  (1.1) 55% 
Total Revenues 140.2 144.2 4.0 103% 
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At year-end, most revenue sources were greater than budgeted. Major revenue variances were: 
  
 Resource Recovery revenue was $12.1 million or 121 percent of budget due to a 

conservative approach to budgeting as these revenues are anticipated to decline over time.  
 
 Capacity Charges (WCF) revenue was $5.7 million or 142 percent of budget due to a 

conservative approach to budgeting and relatively more building activity in the SD-1 portion of 
the service area. The FY20 budget was increased by $2.1 million or 110 percent of the prior 
year in anticipation of continued significant building activity. Strong WCF revenues sustained 
through the third quarter mitigated impacts of shelter-in-place orders in the fourth quarter. 
 

 Property Taxes were $6.3 million or 116 percent of budget due to conservative assumptions 
of property tax growth. 

 
 Interest Income was $1.3 million or 55 percent of budget due to interest rates being lower 

than assumed in the budget. In the fourth quarter rates reached low levels not experienced 
since the third quarter of FY16, and interest earnings recorded declined to the lowest level 
since the third quarter of FY19. 
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Wastewater System Operating Expenses and Commitments 
 
The following charts depict operating budget spending by type for the Wastewater System. Total 
operating expenses and commitments were $104.6 million or 95 percent of the total amended 
budget of $110.3 million. 
 

 
 
 

Wastewater System 
Operating Expenses & Commitments ($ Millions) 

  Amended 
Budget Actuals 

Over / 
(Under)      % 

Operations 75.1  70.1  (4.9) 93% 

Debt Service 35.2  34.5  (0.8) 98% 

Total Operating 110.3  104.6  (5.7) 95% 
    
 
Total operating expenses were 5.0 percent less than budget. Major variances were: 
 

 Operations savings of $4.9 million were primarily attributable to the recruitment lead time 
to fill vacancies, higher than budgeted reimbursement for the administration of capital 
which decreases operating expenses by a like amount, and unspent contingency. Savings 
were partially offset by increases in chemical costs as market prices were higher than 
projected at the time the budget was developed. 
 

 Debt Service savings of $0.8 million were primarily due to lower interest rates than 
assumed in the budget and lower interest expenses in the fourth quarter resulting from the 
pay-down of commercial paper in the second half of the fiscal year. 
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Wastewater System Capital Cash Flow Expenses 
 
Capital expenditures totaled $41.8 million or 86 percent of the budgeted cash flow of $48.5 
million. Of this amount, direct costs associated with capital projects totaled $37.8 million and the 
remaining $4.0 million represents administration of capital expenses. Spending for certain projects 
was deferred to address higher priority work. 
 
The following chart illustrates the direct capital spending for the major projects.  
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GRANTS AND LOANS SUMMARY 
 
GRANTS 
 
In FY20, the District received four grant awards totaling $4.94 million. The table below is a 
summary of all grant activities for the fiscal year.  
 

Grant Project 
Submittal 

Year 
Amount  

($) Status as of 6/30/20 

East Bay Plain Subbasin Characterization and 
Data Management  FY20      758,467   Awarded and Accepted  

Wastewater Treatment Plant Tour Busing FY20             950   Awarded and Accepted  

Bay Area Regional Water Conservation Program 1 FY20   4,177,875   Awarded and Accepted  

Wellness - Association of California Water 
Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority's 
(ACWA JPIA) 

FY20          1,600   Awarded and Accepted  

Mokelumne Coast to Crest Trail - Camanche 
Extension FY20      709,500   Denied  

Regional Water/Wastewater Apprenticeship 
Program 2  FY20      500,000   Denied  

Note:  
 1 EBMUD is administering the Proposition 1 Integrated Regional Water Management grant on behalf of 11 Bay Area water 

___agencies. EBMUD will receive approximately $1.0 million in grant funding for water conservation programs.  
      

2 The Peralta Community College District was the lead applicant for the California Apprenticeship Initiative Grant. The District 
___provided a letter of support for this grant application. 

 
The following is a description of the grant awards: 
 
East Bay Plain Subbasin Characterization and Data Management: Gathering essential data and 
managing various data to complete a robust groundwater model to develop the East Bay Plain 
Groundwater Sustainable Plan. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Tour Busing: Charter buses to transport students from a Title One 
school within the wastewater service area to the Main Wastewater Treatment Plant for a plant tour 
and a career development panel to give students insight into water/wastewater career 
opportunities, treatment plant operations, and the importance of pollution prevention.  

 
Bay Area Regional Water Conservation Program: Water conservation programs in the Bay Area. 
EBMUD is administering and managing this grant on behalf of eleven Bay Area water agencies. 
 
Wellness - Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority's (ACWA 
JPIA): Wellbeing month initiatives that improve employee health and wellbeing.  
 
LOANS 
 
One loan is pending an award decision by the State for the $20.4 million for the South Interceptor 
/ 3rd Street Rehabilitation Project which was submitted in Fiscal Year 2017. 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL INDICATORS 

 

 

 
This section provides a trend analysis for Water and Wastewater Systems from FY11 to 
FY20. 
 
 
Water System Overview 
 

 Financial Goals exceeded targets stated in Cash Reserves Policy 4.02 and 
Debt Management Policy 4.27. 

  
 Financial Position remained sound with an increase in assets and decrease in 

liabilities. Capital contributions decreased due to slowdown in local development. 
 

 Operating Indicators remained strong with a stable customer base and solid 
collection controls, while rates increased above the median for comparable 
agencies.  

 
 
Wastewater System Overview  
 

 Financial Goals exceeded targets stated in Cash Reserves Policy 4.02 and 
Debt Management Policy 4.27. 

 

 Financial Position remained sound with an increase in assets and decrease in 
liabilities. Capital contributions decreased due to slowdown in local development. 
 

 Operating Indicators remained strong with a stable customer base and solid 
collection controls, while rates remained above the median for comparable 
agencies.  
 
 

Employees Retirement System 
 

 Retirement System funded ratio is comparable to other similarly sized agencies. 
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Water - Revenue Debt Service Coverage Ratio  
 
This ratio shows net revenue divided by bond debt service cost. Coverage ratios are used to 
measure the ability to meet revenue bond principal and interest payments. The higher the ratio, 
the stronger the security for the bonds. 
 
The FY20 water system debt service coverage ratio of 2.28 exceeds the KPI target, and has 
consistently exceeded the policy goal since FY13. 

 

Coverage Ratio 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Actual 1.5 1.58 1.71 1.66 1.66 1.65 1.87 2.15 2.35 2.28 
Target 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 

Performance - - + + + + + + + + 
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Water - Percentage of Debt Funded Capital Spending 
 
This percentage shows the amount of debt used to fund capital programs divided by total capital 
spending for each five-year planning period. The District’s goal is to limit debt-funded capital 
spending to no more than 65 percent. The Districts practice is to reimburse the prior 18 months 
capital spending when issuing new debt and reflect the reimbursement in the year the funds are 
spent.  
 
In FY20, the percentage of debt funded capital spending decreased from 46 percent to 34 
percent. FY20 represents the sixth consecutive year the District has met this policy goal.  
 

 
 

Percentage of Debt Funded Capital Spending 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Actual 74% 68% 62% 68% 59% 53% 56% 52% 46% 34% 
Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 
Performance - - + - + + + + + + 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

Target Actual

131



 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.02) 

 

   
 
Water - Unrestricted Reserve Balances  
 
The Unrestricted Reserve Balances indicate the District’s ability to meet unanticipated revenue 
declines or expenditure increases. Unrestricted reserves are committed by the Board of 
Directors. This is distinct from restricted reserves which are legally constrained by law or by 
third party.  
 
The District goal is to meet or exceed the target operating reserve. The FY20 unrestricted 
reserve balance of $583.8 million exceeds the operating reserve balances of $183.7 million 
established by the District’s Financial Reserve Policy. Balances in excess of the operating 
reserves will be used to fund the Water System Capital Projects.  
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Total Reserves Op. Reserves Capital Reserves

Reserve Balances (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Total Reserves 300.8 287.8 308.3 331.6 434.7 340.4 519.1 441.3 604.2 583.8 
Op. Reserves 112.7 112.3 114.9 152.4 164.9 165.3 174.3 176.5 180.5 183.7 
Capital Reserves 188.1 175.5 193.4 179.2 269.8 175.1 344.8 264.8 423.7 400.1 
Performance + + + + + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.27) 

 

 
 
Water - Percentage of Extended Commercial Paper and Un-hedged Variable Rate Debt 
 
This percentage represents the total amount of commercial paper and un-hedged variable rate 
debt divided by the total outstanding long-term debt for each fiscal year period. The District’s 
goal is to limit the commercial paper and un-hedged variable rate debt to no more than 25 
percent of the total outstanding long-term debt.  
 
In FY20, the water system met the KPI target with 12 percent.  
 

 
 

Percentage of Commercial Paper and Variable Rate Debt  

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

% of CP+Var Debt 14% 14% 15% 14% 13% 14% 13% 13% 13% 12% 
Target 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 
Performance + + + + + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

   
 
Water - Total Assets 
 
Total Assets have increased in the past ten years from $4.2 billion to $5.6 billion. The amount of 
Capital Assets (e.g., buildings, pipelines, reservoirs) increased in FY20 to $4.5 billion, or 80 percent 
of Total Assets. 
 
 

 
 

 

Total Assets (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Capital Assets 3,556 3,400 3,485 3,568 3,684 3,796 3,941 4,140 4,310 4,480 

Cash and Other Assets 679 869 761 715 859 814 1060 932   1,126  1,112 

Total Assets  4,235 4,269 4,246 4,283 4,543 4,610 5,001 5,072 5,436 5,592 

% of Capital to Total Assets 84% 80% 82% 83% 81% 82% 79% 82% 79% 80% 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

 
 
Water - Total Liabilities 
 
Total Liabilities over the last ten years have increased from $2.9 billion in FY11 to $3.8 billion in 
FY20. The increases are in line with increased capital spending to improve the Water System’s 
infrastructure, meet more stringent regulations, secure future water supply, and upgrade the 
water distribution system. 
 
The percentage of debt to total liabilities decreasing trend provides more debt capacity. 
  

 

 
 

 

Total Liabilities (in millions) 

 Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Net Pension and Net OPEB Liabilities                    
365  

           
393  

           
515  

           
532  

           
543  

           
583  

Other Liabilities            
246  

           
364  

           
266  

           
249  

           
318  

           
329  

           
261  

           
314  

           
315  

           
316  

Long-term Liabilities         
2,630  

        
2,579  

        
2,637  

        
2,671  

        
2,823  

        
2,756  

        
2,986  

        
2,905  

        
3,040  

        
2,941  

Total Liabilities           
2,876  

        
2,943  

        
2,903  

        
2,919  

        
3,506  

        
3,478  

        
3,762  

        
3,751  

        
3,898  

        
3,840  

% of LT Debt to Total Liabilities 91% 88% 91% 91% 81% 79% 79% 77% 78% 77% 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

    
 
Water - Capital Contributions 
 
Capital Contributions primarily consists of System Capacity Charges (SCC) and contributions 
when the District’s facilities need to be relocated during construction projects. The District also 
receives state and federal grants to fund capital projects.  
 
In FY20, Capital Contributions decreased from $98.14 million in FY19 to $71.92 million 
reflecting a slowdown in property development and constructions projects, particularly in the 
Oakland and Berkeley service areas.  
 

 

 
 

 

Capital Contributions (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

System Capacity Charges 17.63 16.08 22.67 20.37 29.73 39.32 51.46 69.27 73.50 53.30 

Earned Contributions on Construction 6.48 5.87 4.54 5.24 17.08 17.05 14.36 15.52 23.74 17.78 

Seismic Improvement Surcharge 18.10 19.17 20.59 22.68 22.16 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Grants and Other Reimbursements 3.61 4.09 7.99 0.75 2.56 4.40 10.08 2.77 0.90 0.84 

Capital Contributions 45.82 45.21 55.79 49.04 71.53 60.80 75.91 87.56 98.14 71.92 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

 
 
Water - Number of Accounts 
 
The District provides water to approximately 385,067 accounts and a population of  
1.4 million. The number of accounts has slightly increased over the past ten years. Accounts are 
classified as Residential, Commercial, Industrial, and Public Authority (Institutional/Public 
Agencies).  
 

 

 
Number of Accounts (in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Residential 350 347 348 345 346 347 348 348 349 350 
Commercial 27 28 28 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 
Industrial 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Public Authority 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 
Total accounts  380 378 379 380 381 382 383 383 384 386 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

 
 
Water - Percentage of Billed Revenue Collected 
 
The District’s strong billing and collection process is reflected in the continuous high percentage 
of collections for all years. The uncollectible amount continues to be less than 0.5 percent of 
total revenue. 
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Percentage of Billed Revenue Collected  

 Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Net Loss % 0.24% 0.23% 0.48% 0.42% 0.32% 0.23% 0.23% 0.19% 0.16% 0.17% 
Accounts Collected % 99.76% 99.77% 99.52% 99.58% 99.68% 99.77% 99.77% 99.81% 99.84% 99.83% 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

 
 
Water - Comparative FY20 Single Family Residential Bills for Bay Area Agencies 
 
The comparative annual charges are for a typical single family residential (SFR) account using  
8.0 centum cubic feet (ccf) per month. The water system met the target to be “at or below the 
median” of other Bay Area agencies. 
 
 

 
 

 

Comparison of SFR Bills  
(8 Ccf per month) 

Agency Agency Bills 

Pleasanton 438 
North Marin 634 
Dublin-San Ramon 670 
Contra Costa 689 
Hayward 701 
EBMUD 717 
Los Altos 726 
ACWD 751 

Livermore 759 
Marin MWD 865 
San Jose 885 
Palo Alto 964 
San Francisco 997 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.27) 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Revenue Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
 
This ratio shows the net revenue divided by the bond debt service cost. Coverage ratios are 
used to measure the ability to meet revenue bond principal and interest payments. The higher 
the ratio, the stronger the security for the bonds. 
 
The FY20 wastewater system debt service coverage ratio of 2.59 exceeds the KPI target, and 
has consistently met or exceeded the policy goal since FY14. 
 
 

 
Coverage Ratio 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Actual 1.68 1.51 1.59 1.6 1.75 1.98 2.24 2.51 2.83 2.59 
Target 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 
Performance + - - + + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.27) 

 

   
 
Wastewater - Percentage of Debt Funded Capital Spending 
 
This percentage shows the amount of debt used to fund capital programs divided by total capital 
spending for each five-year planning period. The District’s goal is to limit debt-funded capital 
spending to no more than 65 percent. 
 
In FY20, the percentage of debt-funded capital spending decreased to 10 percent. FY20 
represents the sixth consecutive year the District has met this policy goal.  
 

 
 

Percentage of Debt Funded Capital Spending 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Actual 72% 88% 78% 66% 48% 48% 32% 15% 11% 10% 
Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 
Performance - - - - + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.02) 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Unrestricted Reserve Balances  
 
The Unrestricted Reserve Balances indicate the District’s ability to meet unanticipated revenue 
declines or expenditure increases. Unrestricted reserves are committed by the Board of 
Directors. This is distinct from restricted reserves which are legally constrained by law or by 
third party.  
 
The District goal is to meet or exceed the target operating reserve. The FY20 unrestricted 
reserve balance of $108.0 million exceeds the operating reserve balances of $45.0 million 
established by the District’s Financial Reserve Policy. Balances in excess of the operating 
reserves will be used to fund the Wastewater System Capital Projects.  
 
 

 
 

 

Reserve Balances (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Total Reserves 67.8 78.8 95.5 91.3 91.8 87.0 100.9 112.2 115.9 108.0 
Op. Reserves 31.1 31.5 32.2 35.1 42.2 42.8 44.4 43.7 44.4 45.0 
Capital Reserves 36.7 48.3 63.3 56.2 49.6 44.2 56.5 68.5 71.5 63.0 

Performance + + + + + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL GOALS (Policy 4.27) 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Percentage of Commercial Paper and Variable Rate Debt 
 
This percentage represents the total amount of commercial paper and un-hedged variable rate 
debt divided by the total outstanding long-term debt for each fiscal year period. The District’s 
goal is to limit the commercial paper and un-hedged variable rate debt to no more than 25 
percent of the total outstanding long-term debt.  
 
In FY20, the wastewater system met the KPI target with a percentage of 3.0 percent. Currently 
the wastewater system only has extendable commercial paper. 

 

 
 

Percentage of Commercial Paper and Variable Rate Debt 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

% of CP+Var Debt 3% 3% 3% 3% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3% 
Target 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 
Performance + + + + + + + + + + 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Total Assets 
 
Total Assets increased in the last ten years from $804 million in FY11 to $906 million in FY20. 
The amount of Capital Assets increased in FY20 to $758 million, or 84 percent of Total Assets. 
 
 

 
 
 

Total Assets (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Capital Assets 636 653 667 677 682 694 711 716 741 758 
Cash and Other Assets 168 153 131 119 112 111 138 142 155 148 
Total Assets  804 806 798 796 794 805 849 858 896 906 
% of Capital to Total Assets 79% 81% 84% 85% 86% 86% 84% 83% 83% 84% 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Total Liabilities 
 
Total Liabilities over the last ten years have decreased from $530 million in FY11 to $524 million 
in FY20.  

 
The percentage of debt to total liabilities decreasing trend provides more debt capacity. 
 

 

 
 

 

Total Liabilities (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Net Pension and Net OPEB Liabilities         66 70 89 91 93 98 

Other Liabilities 49 63 55 53 58 56 43 44 49 43 

Long-term Liabilities 481 468 456 442 433 418 427 413 403 383 

Total Liabilities   530 531 511 495 557 544 559 548 545 524 

% of LT Debt to Total Liabilities 91% 88% 89% 89% 78% 77% 76% 75% 74% 73% 
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 FY20 FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Capital Contributions 
 
Capital Contributions primarily consists of Wastewater Capacity Fees (WCF). Additionally, the 
District receives contributions when the facilities need to be relocated during construction 
projects. The District also receives state and federal grants to fund capital projects.  
 
In FY20, wastewater system capital contributions decreased to $5.7 million reflecting a 
slowdown in property development and constructions projects, particularly in the Oakland and 
Berkeley service areas. 

 

 

 
 

 

Capital Contributions (in millions) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

System Capacity Charges 2.42 2.82 1.26 0.81 2.79 3.10 7.97 11.42 13.21 5.70 

Earned Contributions Misc. Agreements 0.67 - - - - 0.75 0.71 0.01 - - 

Grants and Other Reimbursements - - 0.33 0.39 0.28 0.32 0.19 - - - 

Total Capital Contributions 3.09 2.82 1.59 1.19 3.07 4.21 8.87 11.43 13.21 5.70 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Number of Accounts 
 
The District provides wastewater treatment and sewage disposal service to approximately 
179,341 accounts and a population of 680,000. The number of accounts has remained stable 
over the past ten years. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of Accounts (in thousands) 

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Residential 156 156 157 157 158 158 159 159 159 159 
Commercial 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 
Public Authority 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 
Industrial 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Total accounts  175 175 176 176 177 177 178 178 178 180 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

 
 
Wastewater - Percentage of Billed Revenue Collected 
 
The District’s strong billing and collection process is reflected in the continuous high percentage 
of collections for all years. The uncollectible amount continues to be less than 0.5 percent of 
total revenue. 

 

Percentage of Billed Revenue Collected  

Fiscal Year 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

Net Loss % 0.64% 0.80% 0.63% 0.45% 0.42% 0.29% 0.21% 0.18% 0.18% 0.20% 
Accounts Collected % 99.36% 99.20% 99.37% 99.55% 99.58% 99.71% 99.79% 99.82% 99.82% 99.80% 
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 FY20 OPERATING INDICATORS 

 

  
 
Wastewater - Comparative FY20 Single Family Residential Bills for Bay Area Agencies 
 
The comparative annual charges are for a typical single family residential (SFR) account based 
on flow of 6.0 centum cubic feet (ccf) per month. The EBMUD rate is based on Treatment rate, 
SF Bay Residential Pollution Prevention Fee and Wet Weather Fee, $377 plus average 
community collection charge of $449; the resulting total did not meet the target to be “at or 
below the median” of other Bay Area agencies. 
 

 
Comparison of SFR Bills  

(6 Ccf per month) 

Agency Agency Bills 

Oro Loma 275 
Union Sanitary 421 
San Leandro 429 
DSRSD 447 
San Jose 467 
Pleasanton 480 
Delta Diablo 540 
Central Contra Costa 598 
West Contra Costa 639 
Vallejo 656 
Livermore 676 
Pinole 808 
EBMUD  826 

Central Marin 861 
Richmond 880 
San Francisco 1026 
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 FY19 RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

  
 
Funded Pension and Health Benefit Obligation Percentage 
  
The funded percentage of the pension and health benefit obligation reflects the difference between 
the actuarial accrued liability and the actuarial valuation of assets (AVA) held by the retirement 
system. Figures shown are through the year ended June 30, 2019, the date of the last completed 
actuarial valuation report. As of that date, the funded percentage of combined pension and health 
benefits has increased from 73.2 percent to 73.78 percent.  

 

 
Funded Pension Benefit and Health Obligation Percentage 

Fiscal Year 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

Health Insurance Benefit  7.43% 8.90% 10.30% 11.96% 13.98% 16.10% 18.30% 26.73% 29.70% 32.99% 

Pension 65.60% 66.02% 65.62% 66.55% 68.90% 71.89% 71.44% 74.91% 75.57% 75.92% 

AVA Funded Percentage 60.46% 61.13% 61.11% 62.33% 64.83% 67.86% 67.78% 72.32% 73.20% 73.78% 
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 FY19 RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

 
 
Comparative FY19 Funded Pension Obligation for Selected Agencies 
 
The comparative funded ratio of pension obligation reflects the most current actuarial valuation as of 
FY19. Many of the listed government agencies issued pension obligation bonds (POB) to increase 
their funding levels. The chart allows the reader to see the relative funding level of the agencies 
without those bonds.  
 
As of the latest respective valuation data available, the assumed rate of return on investments 
for the agencies listed below was: 7.25 percent for the Alameda County Employees’ Retirement 
Association; and 7.0 percent for the retirement system of Contra Costa County, Contra Costa 
Water District (FY18 data), Los Angeles County, Orange County, Sacramento County, San 
Diego County, Sonoma County and the District’s. 
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MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager ~ 

Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

Fiscal Year 2020 Key Performance Indicators Report 

The Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) Key Performance Indicators (KPis) and targets were adopted by 
the Board as part of the July 2018 Strategic Plan to measure progress in meeting the six Strategic 
Plan goals. Attached is the FY20 KPI report, which will be discussed at the October 27, 2020 
Finance/ Administration Committee meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

Strategic Plan 

The Strategic Plan outlines the goals, strategies and objectives the District will pursue to achieve 
its mission to provide reliable and high-quality services, manage the precious natural resources, 
and preserve and protect the environment for future generations. The plan also contains a set of 
criteria to assess whether the goals are being met. The 2018 Strategic Plan is the basis for the 
FY20 KPI report. 

Key Performance Indicators 

The District met or was on track to meet the targets for 94 percent of its FY20 KPis where 
targets were achieved, in spite of the shelter-in-place orders issued on March 19, 2020. This is 
greater than the 90 percent met in FYl 9. A total of four targets were not met: pumping plant 
rehabilitation; wastewater rates; Contact Center customer rating; and leadership program 
graduates who place on promotional lists. Details on these KPI results are provided in the 
attached report. 

CCC:SDS:DM 

Attachment 

I:\Sec\2020 Board Related Items\Committees 202\102720 Finance Ctte\FIN - Ctte Item FY20 KPI Report l 02720 Cover Memo.docx 
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INTRODUCTION 
The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) track progress towards achieving the strategies within the July 
2018 Strategic Plan goals, and include performance targets for each KPI. Performance against the 
targets is measured annually and enables staff to evaluate 
progress in meeting the Strategic Plan goals. Typically, the 
Strategic Plan is updated every two years and some KPIs may be 
changed as part of the update.  

STRATEGIC PLAN OVERVIEW 

The Strategic Plan incorporates the District’s mission and 
principles, and identifies its goals, strategies, objectives and key 
performance indicators. The Plan influences and guides staff in 
the management and allocation of resources and assets.  

Our mission is to manage the natural resources with which the 
District is entrusted; to provide reliable, high quality water and 
wastewater services at fair and reasonable rates for the people of 
the East Bay; and to preserve and protect the environment for 
future generations. 

Our principles provide the foundation of the Strategic Plan and form the basis of our business 
approach which strives to minimize waste, conserve energy and natural resources, promote long-
term economic viability, protect the environment, operate within high standards to serve our 
customers and the community, and support safety and well-being for employees, communities, and 
customers. Our principles are: 

 Exercise responsible financial management 

 Ensure fair and reasonable rates and charges 

 Provide responsive quality customer service 

 Promote ethical behavior in the conduct of District business 

 Ensure fair and open processes involving the public 

 Provide a healthy work environment 

 Promote diversity and equality in personnel matters and contracting 

 Promote environmental, economic, and social sustainability 

Our goals define what the District wants to achieve; they explain ‘what’ not ‘how’, and tell where we 
are going rather than how we will get there. Strategies define which actions to take to reach each 
goal, and may take several years to implement. Objectives reflect what we need to accomplish in the 
near term. Key performance indicators (KPIs) measure how well we are doing in achieving our goals. 
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Our Values 
In 2013, EBMUD’s management team anticipated a looming retirement bubble and changing District 
demographics would lead to significant turnover in the organization’s employees. This realization led 
to a discussion of what organizational values would be key to ensuring the District could best 
assimilate new talent to carry out its mission. The District undertook an intensive process to develop 
its organizational values, recruiting a team of employee volunteers to lead the effort. This team, 
including staff from all levels of the organization, worked to identify and define the core values that 
characterize EBMUD as an agency and a workplace. With extensive input from staff and support from 
management, the team developed the following four values that were adopted by EBMUD in support 
of its employees: 

 

 

STEWARDSHIP 
“I am a steward of our resources and committed to public service.” 

 

INTEGRITY 
“I act with integrity.” 

 

RESPECT 
“I treat others with respect.” 

 

TEAMWORK 
“We are EBMUD and we are one team.” 

These values guide EBMUD staff as they pursue the goals identified in the Strategic Plan. It is our 
belief that working better together will enable us to achieve our mission to serve our customers, 
manage our natural resources, and protect our environment. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR SUMMARY  
The FY20 KPI results are summarized in the table below. The District met or was on target to meet 94 
percent of its KPIs where targets were set and data was available in spite of impacts from the shelter-
in-place order issued on March 19, 2020. 
 

Key FY20 Results # KPIs 

++ Target met 54 

+ Target not met, but on track 11 

-- Target not met 4 

n/a Target/Data not available 1 

 Performance measure only 4 

 Total KPIs 74 

 
A summary of the performance of each current KPI from FY18 through FY20, along with its FY20 target 
is shown in the following table.  
 

KEY PERFORMANCE  INDICATOR – SUMMARY 
 

FY20 TARGET 
 
 

FY20 FY19  FY18 
 Long-Term Water Supply     

Additional supply by 2040 to provide 85% reliability under design 
drought conditions and diversify through regional partnerships Various + + ++ 
62 MGD savings from conservation programs / natural replacement by 
2040 (baseline yr. 1995) Various ++ ++ ++ 
20 MGD of recycled water capability by 2040 Various ++ + + 
Update the Climate Change Monitoring and Response Plan. Explore 
approaches for how to adapt to potential future conditions Risk Assessments n/a n/a n/a 

Water Quality and Environmental Protection     
Mokelumne River fall-run Chinook salmon escapement (long-term avg.) 5,452 ++ ++ ++ 
% of water quality goals met 100% + + + 
% of water quality regulations met 100% ++ ++ ++ 
Number of NPDES and Waste Discharge Permit Notices of Violation 
received 0 + + ++ 
Reduce indirect GHG emissions to zero by 2040 and direct emissions by 
50% by 2040 compared to the 2000 baseline <33,497 MT CO2 ++ ++ ++ 
Capture biogas sufficient to produce on-site energy in excess of 
MWWTP electric power demand 130% of demand + -- ++ 
Implement Private Sewer Lateral Program to reduce wet weather flows 
and achieve a high compliance rate at point of sales 90%  ++ ++ ++ 
Meet JSA Mokelumne River minimum flow releases 100% of the time 100% ++ ++ ++ 
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KEY PERFORMANCE  INDICATOR – SUMMARY 
 

FY20 TARGET 
 
 

FY20 FY19  FY18 
 Long-Term Infrastructure Investment     

Number of water system pipeline breaks per 100 miles of pipe < 20 + -- -- 
% of water system corrective work order hours classified high priority < 10% ++ ++ ++ 
Miles of pipe surveyed 800 ++ ++ ++ 
% of water system valves exercised 10% ++ ++ -- 
Infrastructure leakage index < 2.5 ++ + n/a 
% of high priority meter repair orders completed in 60 days 90% ++ ++ ++ 
Miles of distribution pipe replaced 17.5 ++ ++ ++ 
Design errors and omission change orders on construction contracts < 3% + ++ ++ 
Number of steel water tanks rehabilitated 3 ++ ++ ++ 
Number of concrete wastewater treatment tanks and sewer 
interceptor reaches rehabilitated  2 ++ ++ n/a 

Number of pumping plants rehabilitated 3 -- ++ ++ 
Long-Term Financial Stability     
Water rates as compared to other Bay Area agencies 
Wastewater rates as compared to other Bay Area agencies 

< median 
< median 

++ 
-- 

++ 
-- 

++ 
-- 

Water % of capital program funded from debt 
Wastewater % of capital program funded from debt 

<65% 
<65% 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

Water debt service coverage 
Wastewater debt service coverage 

≥ 1.6 times 

≥ 1.6 times 
++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

Water actual reserves as % of target 
Wastewater actual reserves as % of target 

≥ 100% 
≥ 100% 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

% of planned audits completed 100% + + ++ 
% of audit findings resolved within 90 days  100% ++ ++ ++ 

Cyber Security Operational Readiness 
• Planned patch cycles met 
• Security controls reviews 
• Database security reviews 
• Business recovery exercises 
• Security awareness events  
 

 
> 90% 

Annually 
Annually 

2 per year 
4 per year 

 

++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 

 

++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 

 

n/a 

Water operating expenditures as a % of operating budget 
Wastewater operating expenditures as a % of operating budget 

< 100% 

< 100% 
++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

++ 
++ 

Water capital expenditures as a % of budgeted cash flow 
Wastewater capital expenditures as a % of budgeted cash flow 

90% and 110% 

90% and 110% 
+ 
+ 

++ 
-- 

-- 
-- 

Customer and Community Services     
Unify K-12 school education schools program Complete ++ ++ n/a 
Conduct outreach campaign 3 ++ ++ n/a 
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KEY PERFORMANCE  INDICATOR – SUMMARY 
 

FY20 TARGET 
 
 

FY20 FY19  FY18 
 % of customers rating the District’s services as “Good” or “Excellent”: 

• Field Services 
• Contact Center  
• New Business  
• Water Quality 
• Recreation 

90% 

++ 
-- 
++ 
++ 
++ 

++ 
-- 
++ 
++ 
+ 

n/a 

Average speed of answer to calls coming into the Contact Center  < 60 seconds ++ ++ ++ 
% of calls answered within the target of < 60 seconds 80% ++ ++ ++ 
Abandonment rate 3% ++ ++ ++ 
Timely billing of customer statements as scheduled 99% ++ ++ ++ 
Notify customers 48 hours in advance of shut-off for non-payment; 
provide information on CAP and payment plans to avoid shut-off > 99% ++ ++ n/a 
Reduce shut-offs for CAP participants by 10% over two years while 
increasing CAP enrollment 

Performance 
Measure Only   n/a 

Review shut-off guidelines and customer assistance programs Annually ++ ++ n/a 
% of time customer dependent systems are available 99.9% ++ ++ ++ 
Unplanned water service interruptions per 1,000 active accounts: 

• <4 hours 
• 4-12 hours 
• >12 hours 

 
< 10 
< 5 
< 2 

 
++ 
++ 
++ 

 
++ 
++ 
++ 

 
++ 
-- 
++ 

Odor complaints near the MWWTP ≤ 30 complaints ++ ++ ++ 
Update the District's Emergency Operation Plan every two years and 
conduct an EOT exercise annually 100% ++ ++ ++ 
Update all Business Continuity plans every two years and conduct an 
exercise for each annually 100% + ++ ++ 
Review specific emergency communication plans Annually ++ ++ ++ 

Workforce Planning and Development     
% of competing Leadership Program graduates who place on applicable 
promotional lists 75% -- -- + 
Annual average training hours per employee 30 ++ ++ ++ 
Number of employees in development programs (academies, rotations, 
internships, mentorships) 

Performance 
Measure Only    

% of performance plans completed on time >99% + ++ ++ 
% of performance appraisals completed on time >99% ++ ++ ++ 
Number of injury & illness incidents resulting in time away from work 
per 100 employees ≤3.0 ++ ++ ++ 
Annually implement outreach campaigns on wellness ("Well Being")  4 ++ ++ ++ 
% of exams resulting in hiring lists within 60 days or less 80% ++ ++ ++ 
% of minorities and % of women on District eligibility lists  Performance 

Measure Only    

Number of internships Performance 
Measure Only    
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The Freeport Regional Water Project is a  
supplemental water supply source during dry years. 

Long-Term Water Supply 
Our program is robust. In addition to protecting our Mokelumne supply, 
we’re diversifying our water sources to meet future needs, while 
acknowledging the challenges and changes that accompany them. 
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Strategy 1 
Preserve current water rights and entitlements and augment the District’s successful 
water supply projects by obtaining supplemental supplies to meet customer demands. 

Strategy 2  
Reduce potable water demand through water efficiency and conservation and build on 
past water savings success to help ensure a reliable water supply. 

Strategy 3 
Reduce potable water demand through water recycling and build on past success to 
achieve a diversified and reliable water supply. 

Strategy 4 
Maintain a Climate Change Monitoring and Response Plan to inform the District’s 
planning efforts for future water supply, water quality and infrastructure and support 
sound water and wastewater infrastructure investment decisions. 

  

Goal:  We ensure a reliable high quality water supply for the future. 
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Long-Term Water Supply Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Supplemental Supply  
Additional supply by 2040 to provide 
85% reliability under design drought 
conditions and diversify through 
regional partnerships 

 

Negotiate a Warren Act 
contract with the Bureau of 
Reclamation for a long-term 
water transfer with PCWA 

Draft Environmental 
Assessment and Biological 
Assessment for Long-Term 
Warren Act Contract was 
submitted to USBR for 
review in May 2020.  

++ 

  Conduct technical and 
environmental studies to 
support a second long-term 
water transfer arrangement 
with YCWA 

A project description for 
developing a water transfer 
project with Yuba Water 
Agency was prepared in May 
2020. A draft feasibility study 
for a potential water transfer 
with Sycamore Mutual 
Water Company was 
completed in May 2020. 

+ 

 Continue operation of the 
DREAM Project in San 
Joaquin County 

EBMUD made additional 
releases of DREAM project 
water to North San Joaquin 
Water Conservation District. 
The detailed design of the 
facilities needed to convey 
groundwater to the 
Mokelumne Aqueducts was 
completed in January 2020. 

++ 

 Continue development of 
BARR Regional Water 
Market Program 

EBMUD worked with its 
BARR partners to select two 
pilot water transfer projects 
and initiate stakeholder 
engagement. Obtained 
approval from USBR to 
extend the grant schedule to 
September 2022. 

+ 

 Conduct need-for-water 
analysis with new demand 
study results 

Completed the update of the 
need-for-water analysis 
using water use projections 
and revised Drought 
Management Program. 

++ 

Water Conservation 
62 MGD savings from conservation 
programs / natural replacement by 
2040 (baseline yr. 1995) 

1.2MGD average annual 
conservation savings 

Conservation savings 
continued to exceed the 
target as a result of District 
programs and customer 
demand reduction trends. 

++ 
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Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

 Water Conservation (continued) 19% reduction in per capita 
demand by 2019 

Had a greater than 23% 
reduction in FY20 water use 
compared to 1995 base year. 

++ 

  Implement Water 
Conservation Master Plan 

Implemented home water 
reports, leak notifications, 
landscape water budget 
services, system water loss 
control, new water service 
plan check review, rebates 
and incentives, and more. 

++ 

Water Recycling  
20 MGD of recycled water capability by 
2040 

Begin implementation of the 
updated Recycled Water 
Master Plan 

Customer connections 
continued in San Ramon and 
Emeryville. Purchased a 
property in San Ramon for a 
future recycled water pump 
station in February 2020.  A 
new supply agreement with 
West County Wastewater 
District was finalized in 
February 2020. An 
implementation plan for a 
new residential landscape fill 
station pilot was completed. 

++ 

 Implement near-term 
DERWA supplemental supply 
options 

Preliminary design was 
completed on the Nursery 
Groundwater Well Project. 
Design was completed on 
the Central Contra Costa 
Sanitary District Wastewater 
Diversion Project and the 
construction contractor was 
selected in December 2019. 

++ 

 Implementation of the East 
Bayshore water quality and 
treatment improvements if 
appropriate 

A Request for Proposals was 
advertised in May 2020 for a 
water quality improvements 
pilot project, and three firms 
submitted proposals. 

++ 

Climate Change 
Update the Climate Change Monitoring 
and Response Plan. Explore approaches 
for how to adapt to potential future 
conditions and identify "no regrets" 
infrastructure investment decisions 

Using EPA’s CREAT Model 
Version 3, conduct a broad 
climate risk assessment on 
major District infrastructure 
and operations 

The development of a large-
scale photovoltaic project 
continues; updating the 
District’s Energy Policy 7.07; 
and advanced additional 
efforts in support of the 
District’s climate change and 
sustainability efforts. 
 

N/A 
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Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Climate Change (continued) 
 

  

Complete Wastewater 
climate change evaluation 

The Wastewater Climate 
Change Plan was completed. 
Updated standards will be 
included when the Sixth 
Assessment Report by the 
Intergovernmental Panel on 
Climate Change is completed.  

++ 

 
Supplemental Supply:  The Water Supply Management Program (WSMP) identified a portfolio of 
resources to secure additional supplemental supply. In FY20, progress continued on obtaining 
approvals to implement a long-term water transfer arrangement with the Placer County Water Agency. 
In May 2020, the draft Environmental Assessment and Biological Assessment supporting the Long-
Term Warren Act Contract with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) were submitted to USBR for 
review. Coordination with USBR has been ongoing.  

A revised project description with Yuba Water Agency was developed in May 2020 to support the 
evaluation of a long-term water transfer project. Discussions continued with several Sacramento River 
settlement contractors to explore another potential long-term transfer agreement. In May 2020, a 
feasibility study was drafted with Sycamore Mutual Water Company to develop a framework for a 
multi-year water transfer project based on water conserved by fallowing rice fields on a rolling basis.     

Progress continued toward developing a groundwater banking demonstration project in partnership 
with North San Joaquin Water Conservation District (NSJWCD) and San Joaquin County. In FY20, 
EBMUD released 238 acre-feet (AF) of water for NSJWCD customers, and has released a total of 342 AF 
since 2018.  The detailed design of EBMUD facilities necessary to convey extracted ground water to the 
Mokelumne Aqueducts in the future was also completed in FY20, and construction is anticipated to be 
completed in FY21. 

EBMUD continues to partner with the Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) to evaluate participation in 
the Los Vaqueros Reservoir Expansion Project. In FY20, EBMUD, CCWD and other potential partners 
made significant progress negotiating terms for a Joint Powers Authority agreement and completed an 
amendment to the existing Multiparty Agreement.   

EBMUD and its partner, the City of Hayward, made significant progress toward completion of a 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the East Bay Plain Sub-basin. In FY20, EBMUD and the City of 
Hayward held two technical advisory committee meetings helping stakeholders understand 
groundwater modeling and management, and to share results of a technical analysis associated with 
the modeling. EBMUD and the City of Hayward also secured a $758,467 State grant to further support 
field investigations and develop a data management system.  

The water supply and projected demand is assessed as part of long term water resources planning to 
provide 85 percent reliability during design drought periods. The need-for-water modeling analysis was 
completed using water use projections from the 2050 Demand Study, revised Drought Management 
Program guidelines, and development of a range of scenarios. This analysis was incorporated into the 
Draft 2020 Urban Water Management Plan. 
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Water Conservation:  In FY20, the Water Conservation Program (the Program) continued to implement 
activities identified in the 2011 Water Conservation Master Plan (WCMP). The Program offered rebates 
and incentives, including rebates for lawn conversion and efficient irrigation equipment, and a pilot 
flow meter rebate program launched in September 2019. A continued area of focus for the Program is 
the expansion of tools to help customers manage water use, including residential and commercial 
water reports, irrigation landscape water budgets, and leak notifications. Working in coordination with 
ten other Bay Area water agencies, the consortium was awarded a $4 million Proposition 1 Integrated 
Regional Water Management grant for a Regional Water Conservation Project, of which $1 million will 
go to the District to fund rebates, training and other activities.  

Education and outreach remain an important component of the District’s water conservation efforts. 
While the global pandemic impacted activities such as in-person water audits and community events, 
the Program pivoted to offering more services remotely, such as hosting the District’s first virtual 
meeting of the Landscape Advisory Committee. Staff conducted extensive phone outreach to 
customers with leaks and high water use to minimize financial impacts to customers. Also, digital tools 
are being used to reach customers and process rebate applications. 

During FY20, an effort to update the WCMP commenced. This document is anticipated to be 
completed in 2021 and will serve as a roadmap to meeting emerging regulatory requirements and 
achieving the new water conservation target of 70 MGD in savings in the year 2050. 

Water Recycling:  The target for water recycling is to reduce potable water demand by 20 MGD by the 
year 2040. Recycled water capability of more than 9 MGD has been achieved through a combination of 
irrigation and industrial reuse projects which include refinery processes, irrigation, and commercial 
applications in Richmond, Oakland, Emeryville and San Ramon.  

In May 2020, a request for proposals was issued for a water quality improvements pilot study for the 
East Bayshore project to carry out recommendations to expand recycled water use. Recycled water 
irrigation customer conversions continued in Emeryville. An implementation plan for a residential 
landscape pilot fill station was completed. 

In December 2019, a contractor was hired by Dublin San Ramon Services District on behalf of DERWA 
to construct the Central Contra Costa Sanitary District wastewater diversion project to supplement 
DERWA’s supply. On behalf of DERWA, EBMUD prepared preliminary design for the Nursery 
Groundwater Supplemental Supply Project. Work is also underway to evaluate potable water backup 
supply options during non-drought years. Customer retrofit work continued in San Ramon to connect 
more users to the recycled water system. The property purchase for EBMUD’s proposed future 
recycled water pump station in San Ramon was completed in February 2020. A grant reimbursement 
request for the property purchase was submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers in March 2020 under 
the Water Resources Development Act. 

In January 2020, the reverse osmosis membrane replacement project at the Richmond Advanced 
Recycled Expansion (RARE) Plant was completed. EBMUD negotiated a new supply agreement with 
West County Wastewater District (WCWD), completed in February 2020, to continue to supply 
secondary effluent to both the RARE and North Richmond Recycled Water Plants. 
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Climate Change:  This KPI ensures the District’s future water supply and infrastructure planning 
incorporates adaptation to and mitigation of climate change. The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 
Change’s (IPCC’s) Sixth Assessment Report will not be released until 2021. In FY20, the District 
completed the Wastewater Climate Change Plan, continued support for the Climate Registry’s 
development of the Water Energy Nexus protocol, and became a founder of the Water Energy Nexus 
Registry. New or revised recommended actions include:  

• Continuing development of a large-scale photovoltaic project, 

• Reviewing the District’s Energy Policy 7.07, and 

• Reviewing the District’s GHG reduction goals to achieve net-zero carbon emissions. 
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Carr Ranch is a conservation partnership 
between EBMUD & John Muir Land Trust.  

Water Quality and Environmental Protection 
Our employees strive every day to provide high quality water to our customers and protect 
the environment. 
 



16 

 

Strategy 1 
Manage the Mokelumne and East Bay watersheds to ensure a high quality water supply 
and protect natural resources while providing appropriate public access. 

Strategy 2 
Operate and maintain District facilities to surpass federal and state drinking water 
regulations. 

Strategy 3 
Operate and maintain District facilities to anticipate and meet all water discharge, air 
emission, and land disposal requirements to protect and enhance the environment. 

Strategy 4 
Minimize impacts to the environment by reducing, recycling, reusing and reclaiming 
waste, and by conserving natural resources. 

Strategy 5 
Ensure protection and stewardship of San Francisco Bay. 

Strategy 6 
Operate Pardee and Camanche Reservoirs and facilities jointly as an integrated system 
to achieve multiple objectives including municipal water supply, stream flow regulation, 
environmental protection, flood control, hydropower, and releases for downstream 
requirements. 
 

Goal:  We meet or surpass environmental and public health standards and protect 
public trust values. 
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Water Quality and Environmental Protection  
Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Watershed Protection  
Mokelumne River fall-run Chinook salmon 
escapement (long-term average) 

5,452 14,025 ++ 

Compliance with Drinking Water Regulations  
% of water quality goals met 100% 96% + 
% of water quality regulations met 100% 100% ++ 

Compliance with Wastewater Regulations  
Number of NPDES and Waste Discharge Permit 
Notices of violation received 

0 2 + 

Sustainable Resource Management  
Reduce indirect GHG emissions to zero by 
2040 and reduce direct emissions by 50% by 
2040 compared to the 2000 baseline 

≤ 33,497 MT CO2 28,645 MT CO2 ++ 

Capture biogas sufficient to produce on-site 
energy in excess of Main Wastewater 
Treatment Plant electric power demand 

130% of plant power 
demand 

129% of plant power 
demand 

+ 

Protect SF Bay  
Implement Private Sewer Lateral Program to 
reduce wet weather flows and achieve a high 
compliance rate at point of sales 

90% 96% ++ 

Operate Pardee and Camanche  
Meet JSA Mokelumne River minimum flow 
releases 100% of the time 

100% 100% ++ 

 

Watershed Protection:  The salmon escapement target is the average number of fish returning since 
1940, while performance is the average escapement over the past six-years (2 cohorts or life cycles). 
The FY20 escapement alone was 12,869 fish, and eight of the last nine years saw escapements well 
over 10,000. The Mokelumne River Fish Hatchery produced roughly 6 million juvenile Chinook salmon 
including 2 million fish grown specifically for ocean enhancement. The majority of the escapement on 
the Mokelumne is comprised of hatchery origin fish.   

Compliance with Drinking Water Regulations:  The District met 100 percent of state and federal 
drinking water regulations, and 96 percent of its voluntary water quality goals, similar to FY19 and 
FY18. The District’s water quality goals are more stringent than government regulations to ensure the 
highest quality drinking water. Levels of three chlorinated disinfection byproducts; trihalomethanes 
(THMs), haloacetic acids (HAAs), and n-nitrosodimethylamine (NDMA)) exceeded District goals but 
remained below regulatory levels, and the goal to maintain high disinfectant residuals and very low 
coliform bacteria throughout the entire distribution system was not met. Balancing the competing 
objectives of disinfecting water while minimizing disinfection byproducts continues to be a challenge.  
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Operations and Maintenance staff continue to work with Engineering staff on design modifications to 
the water treatment plants to provide more tools to accomplish these water quality objectives. Staff 
analyzed alternatives to optimize chemical doses at the treatment plants to produce high quality 
drinking water. 

Efforts were also continued to minimize potential exposure to lead in water. The customer lead 
sampling voucher program is operating successfully, and a four-year effort was completed to 
characterize the materials used for each individual service line. Water Quality and Public Affairs staff 
developed educational materials and reached out to businesses preparing to re-open as COVID-19 
restrictions were eased, providing guidance to ensure the safety of premise plumbing inside buildings 
that had been closed for extended periods. Timely technical training was provided to various District 
work units regarding emerging water quality issues such as legionella, lead control efforts, regulatory 
changes, and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), a broad class of man-made chemicals linked to health 
issues. 

These issues are detailed in the September 2020 Water Quality Program Semi-Annual Update 
presented to the Planning Committee. 

Compliance with Wastewater Regulations:  The District did not experience any permit violations with 
the interceptor system, and there were no violations in FY20 at the Main Wastewater Treatment Plant, 
demonstrating 250 consecutive months of continued compliance. 

The District experienced one violation of a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit 
(NPDES) and paid a stipulated penalty of $3,000 in June 2020 for a pH violation at the San Antonio 
Creek Wet Weather Facility that occurred on February 13, 2019.  The violation was caused by unusually 
low influent pH during a significant storm.   

On September 27, 2019, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB) issued a 
Notice of Violation of a Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) permit for an April 13, 2019 pH 
exceedance on the backwash effluent discharge at the Pardee Recreation Area Water Treatment Plant. 
The exceedance was due to a failure of the facility’s main programmable logic computer, which was 
replaced shortly after the incident. The backwash effluent discharge soaked into the ground and did 
not enter any surface or groundwater into which wastewater is discharged (a receiving water). 

Sustainable Resource Management:  District policy established a 2040 goal to be carbon-free for 
indirect emissions, and to reduce direct emissions by 50 percent compared to the 2000 baseline. The 
District’s 2019 direct and indirect emissions were less than the target and overall emissions reductions 
are in line with the long-term goals. The emissions are reported for the Water and Wastewater 
Systems combined. 

Producing energy on-site at the Main Wastewater Treatment Plant (MWWTP) in excess of the electric 
power demand will reduce costs, increase revenues and minimize greenhouse gas emissions. Through 
energy conservation efforts and the Resource Recovery program, on-site power generation provided 
129 percent of MWWTP energy demand, which is just under the target of 130 percent due to reduced 
high-strength waste deliveries during the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
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Protect SF Bay:  Cracks in Private Sewer Laterals (PSLs) lead to infiltration during wet weather, which 
cause discharges of partially treated wastewater into SF Bay through the Wet Weather Facilities. 
Compliance with the District’s point-of-sale PSL Program reduces wet weather discharges and protects 
the Bay. Over time the program will also position the District to comply with the Wet Weather Consent 
Decree. In FY20, the PSL Program achieved 96 percent compliance based on the most recent 12-
months of data, exceeding the KPI of 90 percent, and similar to the 95 percent in FY19. 
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Long-Term Infrastructure Investment 
It’s essential to invest in our infrastructure to make sure that each of our 
customers receives the safest, highest quality water from their tap at all times. 
 

Delivering pipe by helicopter is an innovative  
cost-efficient method that minimizes community impacts. 
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Strategy 1 
Maintain coordinated master plans for all facilities and assets.  

Strategy 2 
Meet operational needs and reliability goals by effectively maintaining the 
infrastructure. 

Strategy 3 
Implement the master plans and set priorities in the operating and capital budget 
process to reflect the needs identified in those plans. 
 

  
  

Goal: We maintain and improve the District’s infrastructure in a cost-effective 
manner to ensure sustainable delivery of reliable, high quality service now and in the 
future, addressing economic, environmental, and social concerns. 
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Long-Term Infrastructure Investment  
Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Effective Management of Infrastructure  
Number of water system pipeline breaks per  
100 miles of pipe 

≤ 20 20.1 + 

% of water system corrective work order hours 
classified high priority 

≤ 10% 4.4% ++ 

Miles of pipe surveyed 800 942 ++ 
% of water system valves exercised 10% 11.5% ++ 
Infrastructure Leakage Index *(ILI) < 2.5 2.15 ++ 
% of high priority meter repair orders 
completed in 60 days 

90% 97% ++ 

Capital Budget Priorities 
Miles of distribution pipe replaced 17.5 17.6 ++ 
Design errors and omission change orders  
on construction contracts 

< 3% 3.3% + 

Number of steel water tanks rehabilitated 3 3 ++ 
Number of concrete wastewater treatment 
tanks and sewer interceptor reaches 
rehabilitated 

2 3 ++ 

Number of pumping plants rehabilitated 3 0 -- 

*ILI = Actual System Leakage/Ideal System Leakage (perfect score = 1.0) 

Effective Management of Infrastructure:  For the nearly 4,200 miles of distribution pipeline there were 
842 breaks, less than the 935 breaks in FY19, and the 891 in FY18. The number of breaks has been 
coming down from the high of 1,189 experienced in FY16 and is approaching the target level of 20 or 
fewer breaks per 100 miles. In the long run, as the miles of pipe replaced under the Pipeline Rebuild 
Program increases the number of breaks is expected to decrease further.  

A total of 7,882 corrective work orders were completed, of which 347 or 4.4 percent were high priority. 
While this was more than the 3.9 percent in FY19 and the 3.4 percent in FY18, it met the target of 
having less than 10 percent of water system corrective work orders classified as high priority.  

A total of 942 miles of pipe was surveyed, again exceeding the target as EBMUD continues to pilot 
satellite imagery, and 1,000 leak detection loggers on hydrants to monitor water distribution pipes 
near creeks. Other loggers throughout the distribution system monitor leaks before they surface in 
high risk areas, such as pipes in slide areas or near fault lines.  
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In FY20, 6,616 or 11.4 percent of system valves were exercised, greater than the 10.8 percent in FY19 
and the 6.1 percent exercised in FY18. This KPI covers only the valves used to isolate leaks and other 
maintenance activities. 

The Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) is a benchmark for distribution system water loss and is the ratio 
of leaks in the system to the theoretical lowest leakage possible using the best available technologies. 
The median ILI value for North American utilities is 2.2, and the lower the number the better. The 
District’s 2019 calendar year index of 2.15 was slightly below the median, an improvement from the 
2.6 in 2018. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) is developing a water loss performance 
standard for each urban retail water supplier in California under Senate Bill 555. Once the District’s 
performance standard is finalized, the ILI KPI will be replaced with the SWRCB performance standard.  

In FY20, the target for meter repair orders completed within 60 days was met with 97 percent 
completed, similar to the past three years. 

Capital Budget Priorities:  Pipeline replacements again exceeded the target totaling 17.6 miles in FY20, 
greater than the 17.5 mile target despite the impacts from COVID-19. The amount replaced was similar 
to the 17.7 miles replaced in FY19, and greater than the 15.1 miles in FY18.   

Design errors and omissions change orders on combined Water and Wastewater System contracts 
were 3.3 percent, an increase from the 1.8 percent in FY19, and the 3.0 percent in FY18. The Water 
System was 4.2 percent on contracts worth $81.5 million; and Wastewater was 0.4 percent on 
contracts worth $25.6 million. The high Water System percentage was related to changes during 
construction of the large and complex Ozone System Improvements at the Sobrante and Upper San 
Leandro Water Treatment Plants. 

In FY20, contracts were completed for improving three steel reservoirs: the rehabilitation of Scenic and 
Scenic East Reservoirs in Danville and the replacement of Derby Reservoir in San Ramon with a smaller 
tank which will improve water quality. The work includes replacing an oversized steel tank with a 
properly sized steel tank; installing new aluminum dome roofs, exterior stairs and platforms for safe 
access; recoating the interior of the tanks; rehabilitating or replacing existing valve vaults with new 
mechanical piping, valves, and appurtenances; and painting the exterior and installing security fencing. 

The Wastewater Department achieved its FY20 capital budget KPI with the rehabilitation of three 
concrete treatment tanks. Recoating the concrete wall and steel dome surfaces of Digester No. 11 was 
completed in December 2019. Rehabilitation of the concrete and equipment for Primary 
Sedimentation Tank Nos. 14 and 16 was completed in November 2019. 

While the District did not award any contracts to replace or rehabilitate pumping plants in FY20, the 
program will exceed an average of 3 pumping plants per year over the course of the program. FY20 
marks the sixth year of the KPI, and a total of 21 pumping plants have been replaced, rehabilitated, or 
demolished to date, which is 3 over the target of 18 for the 6-years since inception of the program. In 
FY19 alone, 5 pumping plants were addressed. Design is underway to replace the Westside pumping 
plant and demolish the Encinal pumping plant in Orinda, and rehabilitate the San Ramon plant.  
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A water revenue bond is a debt security 
issued to finance capital expenditures. 

Long-Term Financial Stability 
We are financial stewards of the resources entrusted to the District and 
manage these through careful financial planning, sound rates, and new 
technologies with the goal of ensuring our long-term sustainability. 
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Strategy 1  
Maintain a Long-Range Financing Plan that sets forth the long-term funding needs of the 
District. 

Strategy 2 
Implement water and wastewater rates and charges that are legal, fair, reasonable, and 
equitable. 

Strategy 3 
Ensure integrity, accountability and transparency in financial management. 

Strategy 4 
Implement technologies that improve the efficiency and effectiveness of business 
processes. 
 

 

 

  

Goal:  We manage the District’s finances to meet funding needs and maintain fair 
and reasonable water and wastewater rates. 
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Long-Term Financial Stability Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Sufficient Revenue/Fair Rates & Charges  
Rates as compared to other Bay Area agencies At or below median Water – below median 

Wastewater – above 
median 

++ 
-- 

Financial Position 
% of capital program funded from debt ≤ 65% Water – 34% 

Wastewater – 10% 
++ 
++ 

Debt service coverage ≥ 1.6 times coverage Water – 2.28 

Wastewater – 2.59 
++ 
++ 

Actual reserves as % of target ≥ 100% Water  >100% 

Wastewater  >100%   
++ 
++ 

Integrity, Accountability and Transparency  
% of planned audits completed 100% 85% + 
% of audit findings resolved within 90 days 100% Action initiated - 100% ++ 
Cyber Security Operational Readiness 
 Planned patch cycles met 

Security controls reviews 
Database security reviews 
Business recovery exercises 
Security awareness events 

 
> 90% 
Annually 
Annually 
2 per year 
4 per year 

 
91% 
Completed 
Completed 
3 
6 

 
++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 
++ 

Budget Performance  
Operating expenditures as a percentage of 
operating budget 

≤ 100% Water - 93% 

Wastewater - 95% 
++ 
++ 

Capital expenditures as a percentage of  
capital budgeted cash flow 

 90% and 110% Water - 85% 

Wastewater - 86% 
+ 
+ 

 
Sufficient Revenue/Fair Rates & Charges:  The District compares its rates and charges with other Bay 
Area agencies to determine whether they are fair and reasonable. EBMUD’s water bill for an average 
single family using 8 Ccf per month was below the median of surveyed agencies as 7 of the 12 agencies 
had higher bills. The combined wastewater collection and treatment bill for an average single family 
discharging 6 Ccf per month was above the median as 3 of the 15 sewer system agencies surveyed had 
higher bills. However, the wastewater bill includes non-EBMUD charges for community collection that 
represent more than 50 percent of the overall bill. A revised KPI for wastewater rates to address this 
issue will be used starting in FY21. 
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Financial Position:   District policy is to limit debt funded capital to no greater than 65 percent of the 
total capital program over each five-year planning period. The Water System debt funded 34 percent 
of its capital program, a significant decrease from the 46 percent in FY19 and the 52 percent in FY18. 
The Wastewater System debt funded 10 percent of its capital program, a slight decrease from the 11 
percent in FY19 and the 15 percent in FY18.  

District policy is to maintain an annual revenue bond debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.6 times. 
The Water System debt coverage ratio was 2.28 which was similar to the 2.35 and 2.15 coverage in 
FY19 and FY18 respectively. The Wastewater System debt coverage ratio was 2.59 which was slightly 
less than the 2.83 and 2.65 coverage in FY19 and FY18 respectively.   

The District’s goal is to meet or exceed the target for operating reserves. The target reserve levels of 
$182.2 million for the Water System and $44.9 million for the Wastewater System were exceeded 
which allows the balance in excess of the target to be used to fund capital projects and pay down debt.  

Integrity, Accountability and Transparency:  The Internal Audit section evaluates, tests, and monitors 
the District’s internal control environment to provide assurance that: assets are properly maintained 
and accounted for; resources are appropriately and efficiently utilized; financial and operating 
reporting is accurate; and that staff complies with District policies, procedures, applicable regulations, 
ordinances, and statutes. Specifically, audits of departments, programs, processes and/or functions are 
conducted to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the preventive, detective, and/or compensating 
controls in place to mitigate risks and reduce potential exposure. Internal Audit also conducts 
investigations to determine the validity and/or impact of allegations of impropriety or malfeasance. 

Six of the seven audits in the FY20 annual audit plan were initiated and/or completed during this fiscal 
year. The seventh is a follow-up assessment of corrective actions taken to address deficiencies noted 
during prior audits was re-scoped to identify specific audits and included in the FY21 Internal Audit 
Plan.  The status of internal audit efforts was provided to the Finance/Administration Committee as 
part of the Semi-Annual and Annual Internal Audit Report in March and July 2020. 

As part of the ongoing effort to ensure recommended controls remain in place and are functioning as 
intended, going forward, beginning with the FY21 Internal Audit plan specific focused testing will be 
periodically conducted in all areas in which previous deficiencies were noted. 

All of the FY20 Cyber Security Operational Readiness KPIs were met. Patching systems helps to address 
system vulnerabilities, security awareness reminds employees of the importance of being vigilant while 
using email, and business recovery exercises test the ability to recover key systems. Reviews of security 
controls and database security look for potential security improvements.  

Budget Performance:  This KPI measures expenses as a percent of budget, with a target not to exceed 
100 percent of the operating budget, and to be between 90 and 110 percent of the capital budget.  

The FY20 Water System operating expenses were 93 percent of budget primarily due to a reduction in 
some operations due to COVID which were partially offset due to increased expenses associated with 
the pandemic; higher than budgeted offset for the administration of capital; savings in debt service; 
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and unspent contingency. In FY19, Water System expenditures were 89 percent of budget. The FY20 
Wastewater System operating expenses were 95 percent of budget primarily due to the recruitment 
lead time to fill vacancies; a higher than budgeted offset for the administration of capital; the 
recruitment lead time; debt service savings; and unspent contingency. In FY19, Wastewater System 
expenditures were 94 percent of budget. 

Capital spending was 85 percent of budget for the Water System due to delays in several pressure 
zone, pipeline, aqueduct and service lateral projects, and the impact of the shelter-in-place order. In 
FY19, capital spending was 105 percent of budget. Capital spending was 86 percent of budget for the 
Wastewater System primarily due to delays in various improvement projects at the Main Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and design of the South Interceptor monitoring station. In FY19, capital spending was 
124 percent of budget. 
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A Field Services Representative performing  
an inspection of a water meter. 

Customer and Community Services 
We deliver responsive, trusted, value-added high quality service. 
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Strategy 1 
Educate the public on the District’s priorities, initiatives, systems and services. 

Strategy 2 
Continue to build trust by providing quality service, timely information and resolution of 
customer and community inquiries.  

Strategy 3 
Build long-term partnerships in the community, regionally and nationally, in areas of 
shared interest.  

Strategy 4 
Maintain an active Emergency Preparedness Program to plan for and manage the 
District’s functions during an emergency and allow for an efficient and effective 
recovery following an emergency. 
 

  

Goal:  We build stakeholder trust and long-term relationships through service excellence, 
proactive communication and education. 
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Customer and Community Services 
Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Communication  
Unify K-12 school education schools program Review Programs unified and 

Pilots implemented 
++ 

Conduct outreach campaign 3 3 ++ 
Customer Satisfaction  
% of customers rating the District’s services as 
“Good” or “Excellent”: 

Field Services 

Contact Center  

New Business  

Water Quality  

Recreation 

 
90% 

 
 
98% 

82% 

100% 

98% 

97% 

 
 

++ 
-- 
++ 
++ 
++ 

Average speed of answer to calls coming into 
the Contact Center 

≤ 60 seconds 39 seconds ++ 

Contact Center service level: % of calls 
answered within the target of ≤60 seconds 

80% 83% ++ 

Abandonment rate 3% 1.5% ++ 
Timely billing of customer statements as 
scheduled 

99% 99.3% ++ 

Notify customers in writing or via automated 
contact 48 hours in advance of shut-off for 
non-payment; provide information on CAP and 
payment plans to avoid shut-off 

 
> 99% 

 
100% ++ 

Reduce shut-offs for CAP participants by 10% 
over two years while increasing CAP 
enrollment 

Performance Measure 
Only 

Performance Measure 
Only 

N/A 

Review shut-off guidelines and customer 
assistance programs 

Annually Review completed ++ 

% of time customer dependent systems are 
available 

99.9% 99.99% ++ 

Unplanned water service interruptions per 
1,000 active accounts 

   

   < 4 hrs. ≤ 10 5.5 ++ 
   4-12 hrs. ≤ 5 4.5  ++ 
   > 12 hrs. ≤ 2 1.4 ++ 
Odor complaints near the MWWTP ≤ 30 complaints 14 complaints ++ 
Note: The KPI result for service interruptions lasting between 4 and 12 hours was reported incorrectly in FY19. The result should have 
been 5.0 and not 3.6. 
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Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Emergency Preparedness  
Update the District's Emergency Operation 
Plan every two years and conduct an EOT 
exercise annually 

100% 100% ++ 

Update all Business Continuity plans every two 
years and conduct an exercise for each 
annually 

100% 98% + 

Review specific emergency communication 
plans  

Annually Plans completed ++ 

 
Communication:  In FY20, work continued to unite the District’s education programs under one 
umbrella. The program gained a mission and vision statements and set of goals to provide direction for 
each education component. In addition, a classroom pilot involving seven schools and two summer 
programs reached over 300 students. The results indicated students and teachers had a keen interest 
in the hands-on and interactive aspects of water science. The pilot also demonstrated the need to help 
students understand the water system as students understood the role of rain and snow as sources of 
drinking water, but most had little knowledge of how it gets to their homes. The pilot gave direction in 
reformulating the District’s existing education materials. In early 2020, another pilot was launched with 
interactive tours of the Orinda Water Treatment Plant for high school students that incorporated 
conversations with water treatment operators, chemists, and plumbers. Two tours were completed, 
including an impromptu tour for students of McClymonds. Additional tours were put on hold in 
response to the COVID-19 shelter-in-place order. 

With the advent of distance learning for all ages due to the pandemic, staff began exploring more 
interactive methods for student and public engagement through the District’s website. The Education 
Resources webpage was updated to combine educational resources on wastewater, conservation, 
environmental protection and the popular Wastewater Treatment Plant Tours.  

Three large-scale media and public outreach campaigns were completed in FY20.  

• In the summer of 2019, an outreach campaign was initiated to inform customers about the 
District’s preparations for planned power outages. Tactics included publications (fact sheets and bill 
inserts); media outreach (advisories, press releases, interviews for TV, radio, print, and on-site 
access to pumping plants); social media; and interactive web tools, including a new map where 
customers could check their address to determine if they were being asked to limit water use. 
Customers in affected areas also received email messages advising them to minimize water use.  

• To impress upon the public the importance of fixing or replacing their leaky private sewer laterals, a 
multi-channel campaign was created, “Cracked sewer laterals pollute San Francisco Bay.” A story 
was featured about private sewer laterals in the Customer Pipeline newsletter, and on social 
media. During a winter storm, EBMUD also issued a news release, conducted press interviews and 
provided media access to the Main Wastewater Treatment plant and a wet weather facility to 
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illustrate the impact of increased wet weather flows on the wastewater treatment system and the 
bay. The resulting stories ran on ABC 7 and NBC 11.  

• In the spring of 2020, as the coronavirus pandemic was unfolding, EBMUD worked to assure the 
public that their water was safe from coronavirus using news releases, regular website updates, 
publications and social media. EBMUD provided images and access to crews conducting essential 
work while following new safety protocols. The messages shifted during the emergency -- from 
emphasizing water quality to highlighting the importance and continuation of essential work, and 
finally to the costs associated with EBMUD’s coronavirus response and our scientific partnerships 
to monitor the virus in wastewater to aid public health decision-making. 

Customer Satisfaction:  In FY20, the District received 154 field services survey responses. Ratings 
continue to be high with 98 percent of customers rating service as “good or excellent”, similar to the 
99 percent in FY19. The total number of surveys received has decreased compared to prior years as the 
number of field inspections performed in FY20 has significantly reduced due to COVID-19. 

The customer satisfaction KPIs for the Contact Center, New Business, Water Quality, and Recreation 
were new for FY19. The Contact Center was rated “good or excellent” by 82 percent of customers. The 
result is below the 90 percent target and is likely attributed to changes to the telephony system and 
the survey process. Prior to FY18, only a portion of customers who called were offered the survey, and 
the results did not capture all customer opinions. Under the new telephony system, all customers are 
given the opportunity to participate in the survey, removing variations in the survey administration and 
providing more complete survey results. In FY20, New Business achieved a 100 percent rating as “good 
or excellent”, while System Water Quality achieved a 98 percent customer rating. Recreation achieved 
an overall “good or excellent” rating of 97 percent, comprised of an Upcountry rating of 98 percent 
and an East Bay rating of 90 percent. Recreation activity is kept by calendar year and the 2019 report 
was presented to the Planning Committee in March 2020.  

The Contact Center received over 289,000 calls and emails in FY20, and achieved its service level by 
answering 83 percent of calls within 60 seconds, which is consistent with the FY19 result of 83 percent 
and exceeds the 79 percent achieved in FY18. The Contact Center continues to meet its goal of 
answering calls in less than 60 seconds with an average time of 39 seconds in FY20, similar to the 38 
seconds in FY19, but an improvement from 44 seconds in FY18. The call abandonment rate for FY20 
was 1.5 percent, the same as in FY19, and down from 3 percent in FY18.  

The timely billing of 99.3 percent of customer statements met the target and the District continues to 
make significant progress in this area. In FY20, the average weekly number of delayed bills was 310, 
down from 350 in FY19 and 372 in FY18, and considerably less than the 711 in FY16. 

Reducing the number of shut-offs due to non-payment for Customer Assistance Program (CAP) 
participants, and reviewing shut-off guidelines continue to be a key focus of the District. In FY20, the 
Discontinuation of Service Regulation (Regulation) was updated as mandated by Senate Bill 998. The 
Regulation outlines the steps for customers to maintain water service, including an appeal process for 
disputing a water bill. To reduce the number of shutoffs additional door hangers were piloted to 
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provide customers one additional reminder of overdue bills. During the short span of the pilot, there 
was a significant reduction in shutoffs compared to prior months using the normal process. 

In March 2020, the District became one of the first water utilities in the country to suspend shutoffs 
due to non-payment as a direct response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, nearly 500 water 
services disconnected due to non-payment were restored to ensure water services were maintained 
for all customers. In FY20, 131,102 48-hour notices were mailed to 46,285 unique accounts, as some 
accounts received multiple notices. In response to COVID-19, the 48-hour notices were modified to 
serve as payment reminders for customers. The revised notices provided information on CAP, payment 
plans, and payment extension options available to customers experiencing financial hardship. As an 
ongoing priority, a number of channels were used (top-of-bill messages, emails, mail, web, social 
media, newsletter and outside partnerships) to reach customers to provide information on CAP and 
other customer assistance programs, especially customers in disadvantage areas impacted by COVID-
19.  

The availability of automated systems used by customers (Internet, Call Center and Dispatch Center 
telephones, Customer Information System, and Integrated Voice Response self-service applications) is 
also a measure of customer satisfaction. The systems had minimal system interruption during FY20. 

Minimizing the impacts to customers from unplanned water service interruptions is vital. The District 
met its KPI for interruptions in all categories, meeting the KPI for interruptions lasting 4-12 hours for 
the second year in a row after missing the KPI in the previous three years.  

A measure of customer satisfaction is to have less than 30 odor complaints attributable to the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. In FY20, the target was met with 14 odor complaints received, slightly 
less than the 15 complaints in FY19. The continued decrease in the number of odor complaints is likely 
related to staff planning work to minimize the potential for generating odors, optimizing operational 
and maintenance practices, and upgrading the odor control system at the influent pump station. 

Emergency Preparedness:  These KPIs measure the District’s ability to maintain an active emergency 
preparedness program and test emergency response and business continuity plans. In FY20, progress 
continued to be made in mitigating risk, preparing for a disaster, and improving readiness. The 
America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) was passed in October 2018 requiring water agencies to 
complete a risk and resiliency assessment by March 2020 and update the Emergency Operations Plan 
(EOP) based on the outcomes by September 2020. The Risk and Resiliency Report was certified within 
the deadline and the FY20 update to the EOP was certified in September. 

The Public Affairs Office is working to update the District’s overall Crisis Communications Plan, and will 
fine tune the emergency-specific Public Safety Power Shutoff mitigation and response communications 
plan which was completed in FY20. 

The District conducted or participated in 48 exercises and drills including those with other agencies and 
mutual assistance partners. The exercises included: a workshop exercise of the Emergency Operations  
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Team with a Public Safety Power Shutoff; one mutual assistance workshop; the bi-annual District-wide 
emergency communications drill; and functional exercises of alternative work locations.  

Details concerning the BCP and emergency preparedness programs are contained in the Annual 
Readiness Report and Program Update presented to the Planning Committee in September 2020.  
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Workforce Planning and Development 
Our mission can only be fulfilled through our high performing employees. We 
hire, train, and retain the best. 
 

The combination of classroom and experiential   
training helps employees fulfill their potential. 
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Strategy 1 
Maintain robust workforce plans to determine future needs, identify gaps and 
implement actions to close the gaps. 

Strategy 2 
Continue to develop employees to meet workforce demands. 

Strategy 3 
Integrate District values, recognize employee contributions, and establish clear 
performance measures to achieve a high performance culture. 

Strategy 4 
Enhance the District’s ability to recruit a highly qualified, diverse staff that exhibits the 
District’s values. 
  

Goal:  We create an environment that attracts, retains and engages a high 
performing diverse workforce in support of the District’s mission and core values. 
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Workforce Planning and Development 
Key Performance Indicators 

Key Performance Indicator FY20 Target FY20 Performance Target Met? 

Employee Development  
% of competing Leadership Program graduates 
who place on applicable promotional lists 

75% 0% -- 
Annual average training hours per employee 30 49 ++ 
Number of employees in development programs 
(academies, rotations, internships, mentorships) 

Performance Measure 
Only 

311 
 

N/A 

Performance Culture  
% of performance plans completed on time > 99% 98.4% + 
% of performance appraisals completed on time > 99% 99.1% ++ 
Number of injury & illness incidents resulting in 
time away from work per 100 employees 

≤ 3.0 1.29 ++ 

Annually implement outreach campaigns on 
wellness ("Well Being") themes 

4 7 ++ 

Recruitment    

% of exams resulting in hiring lists within 60 days 
or less 

80% 90% ++ 

% of minorities and % of women on District 
eligibility lists  

Performance Measure 
Only 

59% minorities 
34% women 

N/A 

Number of Internships Performance Measure 
Only 

40 N/A 

 
Employee Development:  A Pathways Academy has not been hosted since FY15. Overall, 19 of the 24 
participants (80 percent) have promoted to higher level positions. Of the remaining five employees, 
three have retired. This will be the last year reporting on this KPI.  
 
The annual average number of training hours per employee is a common indicator benchmarked by 
employers. During FY20, employees averaged 49 training hours, compared to 39 hours in FY19. The 
increase in general training hours during FY20 is related to California passing SB 1343, requiring all 
employees to receive Harassment Prevention Training every two years, and an increase in tuition 
reimbursable programs completed by employees. 
 
The number of employees in development programs measures the engagement and the development 
of employees. In FY20, 311 employees participated in such programs including engineering rotations, 
values and organizational improvement teams, values advocates, internships, Peralta Cohort Learning 
Program career coaching, and mentoring. In FY19, 324 employees participated in such programs. Due 
to COVID-19, there was a reduction in internships; however, there was an increase in the number of 
employees participating in career coaching. 
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Performance Culture:  This KPI measures the percent of employees with performance plans and 
appraisals completed within the past 13 months. The number of employees with a current 
performance plan in place did not meet the target at 98.4 percent, but the number of employees with 
a current performance appraisal did meet the target at 99.1 percent. Both numbers are down from last 
year as the pandemic added a layer of difficulty for some work groups. 

The Employee Injury and Illness Lost Time Incidence Rate is used by OSHA and the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics to show the number of job-related injuries and illnesses that result in one or more lost 
workdays by employees. For FY20, the Lost Time Incidence Rate was 1.29 and there were 22 lost time 
injuries. For FY19, the rate was 1.51 with 26 lost time injuries.  

In FY20, the Wellbeing effort started with the rollout of training stations with personal trainers in the 
fall, followed by a busy January Wellbeing Month that touched on (1) resilience, (2) mental health, (3) 
movement/physical health, and (4) healthy eating. January Wellbeing Month also included a farmers 
market at the Administration Building and fruit delivery all across the District. As employees worked 
from home or on rotational shifts due to COVID-19, staff worked with Fidelity to bring live personal 
finance webinars to employees, and reminders of how to access tele-health with all of the District’s 
health insurance providers. Lastly, calls were set up with the EAP provider to support employees 
around the personal response to George Floyd’s death and the black lives matter protests. 
 
Recruitment:  The percent of exams resulting in hiring lists within 60 days is a measure of the hiring 
process, and is based on the time from the close of application filings to the establishment of eligible 
lists. In FY20, there were 94 exams completed and 85 resulted in hiring lists within 60 days. The COVID-
19 shelter-in-place order forced a number of recruitments to be put on hold and postponed while new 
test administration procedures were developed. In FY19, there were 124 exams completed. 

The District tracks the diversity of candidates considered for employment to determine if recruitment 
efforts are attracting sufficiently diverse contender applicants. In FY20, the percentage of minorities 
and women on District eligibility lists was 59 percent and 34 percent, respectively, compared to 61 
percent and 41 percent in FY19. This is the second year the District has reported performance on this 
KPI. We report performance on this measure, but do not set targets. 

In FY20, internship programs continued to support the development of a pipeline of local talent for our 
future workforce.  In light of the shelter-in-place order, the District quickly adjusted the annual 
Summer Youth Internship Program to a virtual, project-based model that introduced 31 diverse high 
school students from across our service area to various District careers (including engineering, science, 
skilled trades, and business support operations). For FY20, 77 percent of participants in the program 
were minorities and 54 percent were women. The District’s Toolworks internship program, which 
provides work-based learning opportunities for people with disabilities, provided five internships. 
Additionally, four Industrial Maintenance and Machining interns were hosted by the District through a 
partnership with Peralta Colleges Foundation and Laney College.  In FY19, there were two internship 
programs totaling 56 interns (48 high school summer interns, plus eight Toolworks interns). In light of 
the pandemic and programmatic changes, a decrease in the number of interns was observed in FY20.  
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

DATE: October 22, 2020 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors 

THROUGH: Clifford C. Chan, General Manager ~ 

FROM: Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

SUBJECT: Quarterly Payroll, Disbursement and Real Estate Summary Reports for the Water 
and Wastewater Systems for Quarter Ended September 30, 2020 

SUMMARY 

File the September 30, 2020 quarterly payroll and disbursement report for the Water and 
Wastewater Systems with the Board. This report will be reviewed at the October 27, 2020 
Finance/ Administration Committee meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

As directed by Resolution Nos. 32834-94 and 32837-94, attached is a record of the payment of 
demands. There were no real estate transactions covering the quarter July through September 
2020 to report. 

SDS:AM:lc 

Attachment 
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
FIRST FISCAL QUARTERLY PAYROLL ANO DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY REPORT 

PAYROLL SUMMARY 
(RESOLUTION NO. 32834-94) 

Jul}'. 2020 August 2020 Se~tember 2020 QUARTERLY TOTALS 

District Payments WSG WWG WSG WWG W SG WWG W SG WWG 
Gross Pay $ 15,738,266 $ 2,637,824 $ 15,775,210 $ 2,632,440 $ 17,636,095 $ 2,827,974 $ 49,149,571 $ 8,098,237 
Retirement $ 5,949,028 $ 976,037 $ 5,925,306 $ 964,477 $ 5,917,710 $ 967,445 $ 17,792,045 $ 2,907,959 
FICA $ 1,188,48 1 $ 198,877 $ 1,173,185 $ 196,203 $ 1,250,340 $ 204,851 $ 3,6 12,005 $ 599,93 1 
Kaiser $ 2,03 1,505 $ 305,884 $ 2,045 ,416 $ 304,921 $ 2,034,042 $ 301,614 $ 6, 110,963 $ 912,418 
Sutter Health $ I 19,951 $ 16,419 $ 120,577 $ 16,970 $ I 17,5 17 $ 16,970 $ 358,046 $ 50,358 
Blue Cross $ 3 10,719 $ 46,265 $ (29,753) $ (4,973) $ 634,015 $ 85,991 $ 914,980 $ 127,283 
VSP $ 31 ,762 $ 4,930 $ 31,61 I $ 4,908 $ 3 1,611 $ 4,874 $ 94,984 $ 14,712 
Della Dental $ 190,255 $ 35,861 $ 230,579 $ 27,344 $ 200,572 $ 34,135 $ 621,406 $ 97,340 
Life Insurance $ 157, l 76 $ 24,335 $ 36,504 $ 6,475 $ (82,525) $ (12,096) $ 111 ,154 $ 18,714 
LTD $ 84,806 $ 14,001 $ 41 ,907 $ 6,970 $ - $ $ 126,713 $ 20,971 
Unemply Ins $ 17 $ $ 50,180 $ 7,200 $ - $ $ 50,197 $ 7,200 

TOTAL $ 25,801 ,966 $ 4,260,434 $ 25,400,721 $ 4,162,934 $ 27,739,376 $ 4,431,756 $ 78,942,064 $ 12,855,124 

DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY 
(RESOLUTION NO. 32837-94) 

Jul}'. 2020 August 2020 Se~tember 2020 Q UA RTERLY TOTALS 

Voucher Payments $ 38,216,821 $ 3,628,992 • $ 24,007,024 $ 5,354,641 $ 20,024,592 $ 3,930,426 $ 82,248,438 $ 12,914,059 
Customer Refunds $ 90,981 $ $ 72,624 $ $ 82,755 $ $ 246,360 $ 
Electronic payments $ 849,6 16 $ 7,228 $ 673,5 IO $ 12,171 $ 1,063,629 $ 14,0 13 $ 2,586,755 $ 33,413 
Peard payments $ 970,386 $ $ 838,149 $ $ 952,608 $ $ 2,761,143 $ 

TOTAL $ 40,1 27,805 $ 3,636,220 $ 25 ,59 1,307 $ 5,366,813 $ 22, 123,584 $ 3,944,439 $ 87,842,695 $ 12,947,472 

NOTE: * Five accounts payable check runs in July 2020 

By: 
/~yk)k) 

Sop Date 

By:~ it/11.~lzv . 
Dale 



DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager GU:... 

Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

Quarterly Investment Report- September 30, 2020 

In accordance with Section 53646 of the California Government Code, the Treasurer of the 
District submits to the General Manager, the Internal Auditor, and the Board of Directors a 
quarterly investment report. Attached is the September 30, 2020 quarterly investment report. 
This report will be reviewed at the October 27, 2020 Finance/Administration Committee 
meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

The investments held by the District as of September 30, 2020 are shown in Attachment A and 
totaled $813.9 million. The portfolio is in compliance with the Board's adopted policy regarding 
District investments and as of September 30, 2020 had an average yield to maturity of0.42 
percent. Investments also reflect working capital of the District's associated Joint Powers 
Authorities and the East Bay Municipal Utility District Employees' Retirement System. 

Attachment B shows the composition and credit allocation of the District's investment portfolio. 
It also shows a comparison of the yield of the District's portfolio against the yield on the 90-day 
Treasury Bill and the Federal Funds Rate. On September 30, 2020, the Federal Funds Rate was 
0.25 percent and the yield on the 90-day Treasury Bill was 0.10 percent. Forecasts of the 
projected cash balances of the Water and Wastewater System General Funds for the six months 
through March 2021 are also included. In compliance with Section 53646(b)3 of the California 
Government Code, this report indicates the District will meet expenditure requirements for the 
next six months from a combination of maturing investments and revenues from budgeted 
operations. 

SDS:RLH 

Attachments 

I:\Sec\2020 Board Related Items\Committees 20201102720 Finance Ctte\FIN - Quarterly Investment Report 102720.docx 
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ATTACHMENT A

Description Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value % of

Portfolio
YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

Local Government Investment Pool 156,544,280 156,544,280 156,544,280 19.14 0.26 1
Federal Agency Issues Coupon 144,814,000 145,177,116 145,076,664 17.75 0.42 113
Money Market Mutual Funds 136,887,509 136,887,509 136,887,509 16.74 0.03 1
US Treasuries 136,000,000 138,215,780 138,217,848 16.90 0.13 324
LAIF 91,645,423 91,645,423 91,645,423 11.20 0.78 1
Cash 88,788,069 88,788,069 88,788,069 10.86 0.01 1
Medium Term Notes 57,086,000 58,574,539 57,279,898 7.16 2.43 444
Municipal Bonds 2,090,000 2,105,984 2,088,748 0.26 2.17 207

Total / Average 813,855,282 817,938,701 816,528,439 100.00 0.42 108

_____________________________________________      ________________________

Sophia D. Skoda      Date
Director of Finance

*LAIF includes Retirement funds of $16,645,423.40

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Summary
September 30, 2020

10/12/2020



          

ATTACHMENT A

Water:

Description Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value

US Treasuries 136,000,000 138,215,780 138,217,848
Federal Agency Issues Coupon 126,670,000 126,929,431 126,866,302
Local Government Investment Pool 116,565,674 116,565,674 116,565,674
Money Market Mutual Funds 108,759,252 108,759,252 108,759,252
LAIF 59,001,800 59,001,800 59,001,800
Medium Term Notes 52,245,000 53,635,502 52,387,735
Municipal Bonds 1,175,000 1,188,333 1,174,235

Total/Average 600,416,725 604,295,771 602,972,845

Wastewater:

Description Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value

Local Government Investment Pool 39,978,606 39,978,606 39,978,606
Money Market Mutual Funds 28,128,258 28,128,258 28,128,258
Federal Agency Issues Coupon 18,144,000 18,247,685 18,210,362
LAIF 9,521,100 9,521,100 9,521,100
Medium Term Notes 4,841,000 4,939,037 4,892,162
Municipal Bonds 915,000 917,651 914,513

Total/Average 101,527,964 101,732,337 101,645,002

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Non-Cash Portfolio Holdings by Fund
September 30, 2020



          

ATTACHMENT A

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Non-Cash Portfolio Holdings by Fund
September 30, 2020

JPA:

BACWA
Face Amount 

Shares Market Value Book Value

LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600
Total/Average 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600

DERWA
LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total/Average 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

FRWA
LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total/Average 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

IICP
LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 150,500 150,500 150,500

Total/Average 150,500 150,500 150,500

UMRWA
LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 64,000 64,000 64,000

Total/Average 64,000 64,000 64,000



          

ATTACHMENT A

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Non-Cash Portfolio Holdings by Fund
September 30, 2020

Other:

Employee Retirement System Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value

LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423
Total/Average 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423

FERC
LAIF Local Government Investment Pool 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total/Average 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000



Water (Continued) ATTACHMENT A

5

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

Water:
US Treasuries
T-Bill 0 10/27/2020 9127964K2 9/2/2020 34,000,000 33,997,960 33,997,705 33,995,325 Aaa AA+ 0.09 27
T-Note 1.5 11/30/2021 912828YT1 7/23/2020 34,000,000 34,533,800 34,533,777 34,620,234 Aaa AA+ 0.15 426
T-Note 1.75 11/30/2021 912828U65 8/12/2020 34,000,000 34,640,220 34,633,637 34,706,520 Aaa AA+ 0.15 426
T-Note 2.875 11/15/2021 9128285L0 8/10/2020 34,000,000 35,043,800 35,052,729 35,183,359 Aaa AA+ 0.12 411

Subtotal/Average 136,000,000 138,215,780 138,217,848 138,505,439

Federal Agency Issues Coupon
FHLB 0.145 10/15/2020 3130AJMP1 6/18/2020 34,900,000 34,900,000 34,899,516 34,896,161 Aaa AA+ 0.18 15
FHLMC 1.875 11/17/2020 3137EAEK1 6/30/2020 22,010,000 22,060,403 22,059,202 22,153,505 Aaa AA+ 0.16 48
FHLB 0.145 10/22/2020 3130AJN39 6/26/2020 20,000,000 19,999,800 19,999,888 19,999,400 Aaa AA+ 0.15 22
FNMA 1.5 11/30/2020 3135G0F73 6/23/2020 14,756,000 14,789,791 14,788,517 14,841,290 Aaa AA+ 0.17 61
FNMA 1.5 11/27/2020-15 3136G06A4 9/2/2020 10,000,000 10,021,600 10,022,283 10,033,040 Aaa AA+ 0.10 58
FNMA 2.875 10/30/2020 3135G0U84 6/18/2020 8,054,000 8,072,122 8,071,869 8,133,815 Aaa AA+ 0.17 30
FNMA 2.5 4/13/2021 3135G0U27 8/13/2020 7,275,000 7,365,719 7,367,532 7,390,309 Aaa AA+ 0.12 195
FHLMC 1.85 11/27/2020-17 3134GA2Q6 10/4/2017 2,925,000 2,932,722 2,924,978 2,924,561 Aaa AA+ 1.86 58
FHLMC 2 11/18/2024-20 3134GURP7 11/18/2019 2,650,000 2,655,963 2,649,890 2,649,868 Aaa AA+ 2.00 1510
FFCB 2 11/5/2020 3133EEAV2 12/18/2018 2,000,000 2,003,640 1,998,562 1,972,520 Aaa AA+ 2.75 36
FFCB 1.95 11/2/2021 3133EHP31 12/12/2018 1,000,000 1,019,590 990,581 975,010 Aaa AA+ 2.86 398
FHLMC 1.5 4/27/2021-18 3134G9EE3 1/9/2019 1,000,000 1,007,910 993,536 974,050 Aaa AA+ 2.67 209
FHLB 1.35 11/24/2020-17 3130A9VU2 7/27/2017 100,000 100,172 99,948 98,850 Aaa AA+ 1.71 55

Subtotal/Average 126,670,000 126,929,431 126,866,302 127,042,379

Money Market Mutual Funds
Federated MM MM3767 1/9/2018 54,455,661 54,455,661 54,455,661 54,455,661 Aaa AAA 0.04 1
Morgan Stanley MM MM0852 6/30/2011 27,303,590 27,303,590 27,303,590 27,303,590 Aaa AAA 0.02 1
Fidelity Investments MM MM4022 3/2/2016 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000 Aaa AAA 0.01 1

Subtotal/Average 108,759,252 108,759,252 108,759,252 108,759,252

CAMP CA Asset Mgmt Program
CAMP LGIP CAMP6035 5/9/2014 96,539,491 96,539,491 96,539,491 96,539,491 NR AAA 0.27 1

Subtotal/Average 96,539,491 96,539,491 96,539,491 96,539,491

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details by Fund - Investments
September 30, 2020



Water (Continued) ATTACHMENT A

6

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

LAIF Local Government Investment Pool
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 59,001,800 59,001,800 59,001,800 59,001,800 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 59,001,800 59,001,800 59,001,800 59,001,800

Medium Term Notes
Apple Inc 2 11/13/2020 037833DJ6 12/26/2018 12,529,000 12,555,186 12,517,011 12,341,529 Aa1 AA+ 2.82 44
Apple Inc 2.7 5/13/2022 037833BF6 2/21/2019 9,802,000 10,179,475 9,797,824 9,793,668 Aa1 AA+ 2.73 590
Apple Inc 2.7 5/13/2022 037833BF6 2/7/2019 5,845,000 6,070,091 5,842,148 5,839,243 Aa1 AA+ 2.73 590
Apple Inc 2.85 5/6/2021 037833AR1 3/24/2020 5,460,000 5,541,354 5,481,793 5,500,786 Aa1 AA+ 2.17 218
APPLE INC 2.4 5/3/2023 037833AK6 3/16/2020 5,000,000 5,264,400 5,122,941 5,148,700 Aa1 AA+ 1.43 945
Apple Inc 2.85 5/6/2021 037833AR1 11/28/2018 5,000,000 5,074,500 4,992,448 4,969,170 Aa1 AA+ 3.11 218
Apple Inc 2.3 5/11/2022 037833CQ1 2/7/2019 4,444,000 4,582,786 4,414,595 4,384,539 Aa1 AA+ 2.73 588
MICROSOFT CORP 2.375 5/1/2023-23 594918AT1 12/11/2019 4,165,000 4,367,711 4,218,977 4,235,805 Aaa AAA 1.86 943

Subtotal/Average 52,245,000 53,635,502 52,387,735 52,213,440

CalTRUST Local Government Investment Pool
CalTRUST LGIP CALTRUST923 4/30/2020 20,026,183 20,026,183 20,026,183 20,026,183 NR AAA 0.16 1

Subtotal/Average 20,026,183 20,026,183 20,026,183 20,026,183

Municipal Bonds
Highland Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency 2 2 430034AV0 9/7/2017 810,000 812,171 809,630 806,290 None AA+ 2.14 124
Yorba Linda Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency 986176AR6 9/1/2017 365,000 376,162 364,605 363,971 None AA- 2.31 701

Subtotal/Average 1,175,000 1,188,333 1,174,235 1,170,261

600,416,725 604,295,771 602,972,845 603,258,244   
  

  

Total/Average



Wastewater (Continued) ATTACHMENT A

7

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

Wastewater:
CAMP CA Asset Mgmt Program
CAMP LGIP CAMP6035 8/19/2016 39,978,606 39,978,606 39,978,606 39,978,606 NR AAA 0.27 1

Subtotal/Average 39,978,606 39,978,606 39,978,606 39,978,606

Money Market Mutual Funds
Federated MM MM3767 6/25/2018 14,084,470 14,084,470 14,084,470 14,084,470 Aaa AAA 0.04 1
Morgan Stanley MM MM0852 10/29/2019 7,043,787 7,043,787 7,043,787 7,043,787 Aaa AAA 0.02 1
Fidelity Investments MM MM4022 12/20/2019 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000 Aaa AAA 0.01 1

Subtotal/Average 28,128,258 28,128,258 28,128,258 28,128,258

Federal Agency Issues Coupon
FFCB 1.74 10/21/2022-20 3133EK2U9 3/25/2020 4,060,000 4,063,735 4,071,337 4,074,190 Aaa AA+ 1.60 751
FFCB 2.375 4/15/2021 3133EKGY6 8/13/2020 3,500,000 3,542,140 3,542,608 3,552,990 Aaa AA+ 0.12 197
FHLMC 1.875 11/17/2020 3137EAEK1 1/14/2020 1,845,000 1,849,225 1,845,650 1,849,170 Aaa AA+ 1.60 48
FHLMC 1.875 11/17/2020 3137EAEK1 6/18/2020 1,749,000 1,753,005 1,752,872 1,761,260 Aaa AA+ 0.18 48
FHLMC 1.875 11/17/2020 3137EAEK1 1/14/2020 1,540,000 1,543,527 1,540,547 1,543,511 Aaa AA+ 1.60 48
FNMA 1.5 11/30/2020 3135G0F73 9/28/2020 1,500,000 1,503,435 1,503,500 1,503,615 Aaa AA+ 0.10 61
FFCB 1.71 11/25/2022-20 3133ELAU8 3/25/2020 1,200,000 1,203,012 1,203,744 1,204,644 Aaa AA+ 1.56 786
FNMA 2.28 4/23/2021-14 3136G0EG2 12/12/2018 850,000 860,209 847,329 838,755 Aaa AA+ 2.86 205
FFCB 1.75 4/1/2021 3133ECKF0 12/10/2019 500,000 504,020 500,122 500,318 Aaa AA+ 1.70 183
FFCB 1.79 11/12/2024-21 3133EK6L5 11/18/2019 500,000 508,190 499,517 499,415 Aaa AA+ 1.82 1504
FFCB 2 4/4/2022 3133ECKQ6 11/18/2019 500,000 513,835 502,207 503,477 Aaa AA+ 1.70 551
FFCB 5.375 11/10/2020 31331VFZ4 12/13/2019 200,000 201,146 200,812 206,594 Aaa AA+ 1.70 41
FHLMC 1.8 5/28/2021-15 3134G45K0 12/13/2019 200,000 202,206 200,118 200,262 Aaa AA+ 1.71 240

Subtotal/Average 18,144,000 18,247,685 18,210,362 18,238,200

LAIF Local Government Investment Pool
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 9,521,100 9,521,100 9,521,100 9,521,100 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 9,521,100 9,521,100 9,521,100 9,521,100

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details by Fund - Investments
September 30, 2020



Wastewater (Continued) ATTACHMENT A

8

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

Medium Term Notes
Apple Inc 2.25 2/23/2021 037833BS8 8/14/2020 1,355,000 1,364,539 1,364,358 1,367,371 Aa1 AA+ 0.51 146
Apple Inc 2.3 5/11/2022 037833CQ1 3/17/2020 1,000,000 1,031,230 1,013,685 1,018,270 Aa1 AA+ 1.43 588
Apple Inc 2 11/13/2020 037833DJ6 12/11/2019 996,000 998,082 996,325 998,500 Aa1 AA+ 1.72 44
Microsoft Corp 2.65 11/3/2022 594918BH6 3/18/2020 500,000 523,270 512,713 515,975 Aaa AAA 1.41 764
Apple Inc 2.7 5/13/2022 037833BF6 3/16/2020 400,000 415,404 408,245 411,012 Aa1 AA+ 1.40 590
Microsoft Corp 2.65 11/3/2022 594918BH6 3/18/2020 250,000 261,635 256,357 257,988 Aaa AAA 1.41 764
Toyota Motor Credit Corp 2.95 4/13/2021 89236TEU5 11/30/2018 215,000 218,014 214,639 213,398 Aa3 AA- 3.28 195
Apple Inc 2.85 5/6/2021 037833AR1 1/16/2020 125,000 126,863 125,839 126,833 Aa1 AA+ 1.71 218

Subtotal/Average 4,841,000        4,939,037     4,892,162     4,909,346     

Municipal Bonds
Culver City Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency 230340AM3 12/4/2017 780,000 780,913 779,927 777,582 None AA- 2.11 32
Palm Springs CA Cmnty Redevelopment Agency Success 69667ABS4 11/15/2017 135,000 136,739 134,586 133,292 None AA- 2.35 336

Subtotal/Average 915,000 917,651 914,513 910,874

101,527,964 101,732,337 101,645,002 101,686,385   
  

  

Total/Average



ATTACHMENT A

9

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

JPA:
BACWA
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600 2,262,600

DERWA
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 2/1/2017 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

FRWA
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

IICP
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 150,500 150,500 150,500 150,500 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 150,500 150,500 150,500 150,500

UMRWA
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 64,000 64,000 64,000 64,000 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 64,000 64,000 64,000 64,000

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details by Fund - Investments
September 30, 2020



ATTACHMENT A

10

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date

Face Amount 
Shares Market Value Book Value Cost Value Moodys S&P YTM @ 

Cost
Days To 
Maturity

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details by Fund - Investments
September 30, 2020

Other:
Employee Retirement System
LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 6/30/2011 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423 16,645,423

FERC
LAIF LGIP LGIP1001 6/30/2011 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 NR NR 0.78 1

Subtotal/Average 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Cash
WELLS FARGO Cash CASH2017 4/1/2017 88,788,069 88,788,069 88,788,069 88,788,069 NR NR 0.01 1

Subtotal/Average 88,788,069 88,788,069 88,788,069 88,788,069



T-Bill 34 + T-Note AA+             136,000,000 

FAMC AA+                             -   
FFCB AA+               13,460,000 
FHLB AA+               55,000,000 
FHLMC AA+               33,919,000 
FNMA AA+               42,435,000 

Municipal AAA category                             -   
Municipal AA category                 2,090,000 

Corporate AAA category                 4,915,000 
Corporate AA category               52,171,000 

LGIP AAAmf             156,544,280 
MMF AAAmf             136,887,509 
LAIF N/A               91,645,423 
Cash N/A               88,788,069 

813,855,282$          

 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

September 30, 2020

 

Investment Portfolio
Yield and Composition - by Asset Class

ATTACHMENT B-1

Corporate Bonds

Municipal Bonds

Ratings & Amounts

Agency Bonds

Overnight Liquidity

U.S. Treasuries

Federal Agency 
Issues 

17.79% 

Municipal 
Bonds 
0.26% 

US Treasuries 
16.71% 

Medium Term Notes 
7.01% 

LGIP 
19.24% 

LAIF 
11.26% 

Money 
Market  
16.82% 

Cash 
10.91% 

Other 
58.23% 

Portfolio Holding Distribution by Asset Class 
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EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

September 30, 2020

 

Yield and Composition of Investment Portfolio
Investment Portfolio
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ATTACHMENT B-3

Month End
Matured 

Investments Receipts Disbursements
 Cash & 

Investments
Matured 

Reinvested

Sep-20 666.1
Oct-20 63.0 64.3 56.3 674.1 63.0  
Nov-20 54.3 56.6 116.4 614.3 54.3  
Dec-20 0.0 69.9 56.3 627.9 0.0  
Jan-21 0.0 49.7 56.3 621.3 0.0  
Feb-21 0.8 47.5 56.3 612.6 0.8  
Mar-21 0.0 46.9 56.3 603.2 0.0  

Month End
Matured 

Investments Receipts Disbursements
 Cash & 

Investments
Matured 

Reinvested

Sep-20 108.9
Oct-20 0.0 9.2 10.5 107.6 0.0  
Nov-20 7.1 26.2 19.5 114.3 7.1  
Dec-20 0.0 9.2 10.5 113.0 0.0  
Jan-21 0.0 9.2 10.5 111.7 0.0  
Feb-21 1.4 9.2 10.5 110.4 1.4  
Mar-21 0.0 9.2 10.5 109.1 0.0  

 

Projected

 

 

Projected Cash Flow (in $Millions)

Water System

Projected

Wastewater System

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Investment Portfolio

Yield and Composition of Investment Portfolio
September 30, 2020
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DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager CU­

Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

Monthly Investment Transactions Report 

In accordance with Policy 4.07 - Investment Policy, staff presents a monthly transactions report 
for the Finance/ Administration Committee to review and for the Board to consider each month. 
The September 2020 report is being submitted for Board consideration. This report will be 
presented at the October 27, 2020 Finance/ Administration Committee meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

Pursuant to Policy 4.07 - Investment Policy, staff generates a monthly report of investment 
transactions (buys, sales, deposits, withdrawals) as well as transactions that occur as a feature of 
the securities held (interest, calls, maturities). Information on portfolio performance, balances, 
and other factors are presented in the quarterly investment report. 

In September 2020, the portfolio increased from $795.3 million to $813.9 million. Net 
transactions increased the total by $18.5 million. Interest received added $0.1 million to the 
portfolio. Deposits into short-term liquidity funds totaled $27.4 million and $21.4 million was 
withdrawn. The District purchased $45.5 million in securities, and $35.5 million in securities 
matured. No securities were called and no securities were sold. Net transactions at the District's 
commercial bank resulted in an increase of $2.6 million. 

CCC:SDS:RLH 

Attachment 

I:\Sec\2020 Board Related Items\Committees 2020\102720 Finance Ctte\FIN ·Monthly Investment Transactions Report Memo 102720.docx 
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    Monthly Investment Transactions Report 
September 2020 

This report is presented to the Board pursuant to Government Code Section 53607 and in 
accordance with the District’s Investment Policy 4.07. 

The attached report details transactions in the District’s portfolio as follows: 

• Monthly Investment Transactions Summary  Page 1 
• Monthly Investment Activity  Page 2 

o Buys                Page 3 
o Deposits  Page 4 
o Matured  Page 5 
o Calls  Page 6 
o Sales  Page 7 
o Withdrawals  Page 8 

• Monthly Interest Activity  Page 9 
o Interest Received (Transferred to Wells Fargo)   Page 10
o Interest Received (Reinvested)  Page 11 

________________________________________ _________________________ 
Approved by: Sophia D. Skoda, Finance Director  Date 

SDS:AMM:aw 

10/12/2020
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Beginning Monthly Net Monthly Interest Ending 
Portfolio Balance* Transaction Activity Activity Balance
001 - Water System Consolidated 591,610,119.77          8,780,000.00                 26,605.57                    600,416,725.34          
007 - Wastewater Consolidated 100,303,309.01          1,215,000.00                 9,655.27                       101,527,964.28          
049 - Ferc Partnership 2,000,000.00               -                                   -                                 2,000,000.00               
009 - BACWA 2,262,600.00               -                                   -                                 2,262,600.00               
015 - DERWA 1,000,000.00               -                                   -                                 1,000,000.00               
002 - FRWA 1,000,000.00               -                                   -                                 1,000,000.00               
014 - IICP 150,500.00                  -                                   -                                 150,500.00                  
010 - UMRWA 64,000.00                    -                                   -                                 64,000.00                    
003 - Employees Retirement 10,666,423.40             5,979,000.00                 -                                 16,645,423.40             
099 - Wells Fargo** 86,198,177.21             2,569,361.55                 20,529.98                    88,788,068.74             
Total 795,255,129.39          18,543,361.55               56,790.82                    813,855,281.76          

* Portfolio balance presented at face value.

**Wells Fargo's month-end available balance per bank statement. Gross amount; not allocated by fund and not included in balances above.

_____________________________________
     
___________________

Prepared by: Anjanique Walsh, Accounting Technician      Date

_____________________________________
     
___________________

Reviewed by: Sandy Lindley, Accounting Supervisor      Date

_____________________________________
     
___________________

Approved by: Andrea M. Miller, Controller      Date

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Transactions Summary

September 2020

           Anjanique Walsh 10/6/20

10/6/20             Sandy Lindley

           Andrea Miller 10/8/20
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Non-Investment Net Transaction
Portfolio Buys Deposits Matured Calls Sales Withdrawals Transactions* Activity
001 - Water System Consolidated 44,000,000.00      -                          (35,220,000.00)     -                          -                        -                          -                           8,780,000.00         
007 - Wastewater Consolidated 1,500,000.00        -                          (285,000.00)           -                          -                        -                          -                           1,215,000.00         
049 - Ferc Partnership -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
009 - BACWA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
015 - DERWA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
002 - FRWA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
014 - IICP -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
010 - UMRWA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
003 - Employees Retirement -                          27,374,000.00      -                          -                          -                        (21,395,000.00)     -                           5,979,000.00         
065 - Water S2008A DSRF -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
068 - Water 2010A DSRF -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          -                           -                          
Investment Activity Total 45,500,000.00      27,374,000.00      (35,505,000.00)     -                          -                        (21,395,000.00)     -                           15,974,000.00      

099 - Wells Fargo (45,500,000.00)    (27,374,000.00)    35,505,000.00      -                          -                        21,395,000.00      18,543,361.55       2,569,361.55         

Total -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                          18,543,361.55       18,543,361.55      

______________________________________     
     
_______________

Reviewed by: Damien Charléty, Principal Mgmt Analyst      Date

______________________________________
     
_______________

Approved by: Robert L. Hannay, Treasury Manager      Date

*Non-investment transactions are net receipts and expenditures in Wells Fargo resulting from activities other than investment and interest transactions detailed in this report.

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020

10/12/2020
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 
Dividends Total

Buys
001 - Water System Consolidated Federal Agency Issues Coupon FNMA 1.5 11/27/2020-15 3136G06A4 09/01/2020 09/02/2020 11/27/2020 10,000,000.00 10,033,040.00 39,583.33 10,072,623.33
001 - Water System Consolidated US Treasuries T-Bill 0 10/27/2020 9127964K2 09/01/2020 09/02/2020 10/27/2020 34,000,000.00 33,995,325.00 0.00 33,995,325.00

Total 44,000,000.00
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Federal Agency Issues Coupon FNMA 1.5 11/30/2020 3135G0F73 09/25/2020 09/28/2020 11/30/2020 1,500,000.00 1,503,615.00 7,375.00 1,510,990.00

Total 1,500,000.00

45,500,000.00 45,531,980.00 46,958.33 45,578,938.33

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 
Dividends Total

Deposits
003 - Employees Retirement LAIF LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 09/02/2020 09/02/2020 N/A 19,000,000.00 19,000,000.00 0.00 19,000,000.00
003 - Employees Retirement LAIF LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 09/04/2020 09/04/2020 N/A 4,188,000.00 4,188,000.00 0.00 4,188,000.00
003 - Employees Retirement LAIF LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 09/18/2020 09/18/2020 N/A 4,186,000.00 4,186,000.00 0.00 4,186,000.00

Total 27,374,000.00

27,374,000.00 27,374,000.00 0.00 27,374,000.00

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 
Dividends Total

Matured
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Alameda County Improvement Commissio   010775BA1 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 225,000.00 225,000.00 0.00 225,000.00
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Succe   80182YCR6 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 760,000.00 760,000.00 0.00 760,000.00
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Yorba Linda Redevelopment Agency Succ  986176AP0 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 235,000.00 235,000.00 0.00 235,000.00
001 - Water System Consolidated US Treasuries T-Bill 0 9/29/2020 9127964A4 09/29/2020 09/29/2020 09/29/2020 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 0.00 34,000,000.00

Total 35,220,000.00
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Municipal Bonds Palm Springs CA Cmnty Redevelopment A  69667ABR6 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 285,000.00 285,000.00 0.00 285,000.00

Total 285,000.00

35,505,000.00 35,505,000.00 0.00 35,505,000.00

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 
Dividends Total

Calls

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020

*No Transactions this Period*  
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal
Interest/ 

Dividends Total

Sales

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020

*No Transactions this Period*  
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date Maturity Date Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 
Dividends Total

Withdrawals
003 - Employees Retirement LAIF LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 09/03/2020 09/03/2020 N/A 10,780,000.00 10,780,000.00 0.00 10,780,000.00
003 - Employees Retirement LAIF LAIF LGIP LGIP1005 09/29/2020 09/29/2020 N/A 10,615,000.00 10,615,000.00 0.00 10,615,000.00

Total 21,395,000.00

21,395,000.00 21,395,000.00 0.00 0.00

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Investment Activity

September 2020
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Total Interest Interest Transferred Net Interest
Portfolio Received to Wells Fargo* Activity (Reinvested)**
001 - Water System Consolidated 42,878.01                             (16,272.44)                            26,605.57                             
007 - Wastewater Consolidated 13,912.81                             (4,257.54)                              9,655.27                                
049 - Ferc Partnership -                                         -                                         -                                         
009 - BACWA -                                         -                                         -                                         
015 - DERWA -                                         -                                         -                                         
002 - FRWA -                                         -                                         -                                         
014 - IICP -                                         -                                         -                                         
010 - UMRWA -                                         -                                         -                                         
003 - Employees Retirement -                                         -                                         -                                         
065 - Water S2008A DSRF -                                         -                                         -                                         
068 - Water 2010A DSRF -                                         -                                         -                                         
Interest Transactions Total 56,790.82                             (20,529.98)                            36,260.84                             

099 - Wells Fargo -                                         20,529.98                             20,529.98                             

Total 56,790.82                             -                                         56,790.82                             

*Coupon and other interest received; reinvestment unavailable.

**Coupon and other interest payments reinvested in specific portfolio.

_____________________________________      _____________________ 
Prepared by: Anjanique Walsh, Accounting Technician      Date

_____________________________________      _____________________ 
Reviewed by: Sandy Lindley, Accounting Supervisor      Date

_____________________________________      _____________________ 
Approved by: Andrea M. Miller, Controller      Date

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Interest Activity

September 2020

10/6/20           Anjanique Walsh

           Sandy Lindley 10/6/20

           Andrea Miller 10/8/20
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Face 
Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 

Dividends Total

Interest Received (Transferred to Wells Fargo)
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Alameda County Improvement Commission S  010775BA1 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 0.00 0.00 2,250.00 2,250.00
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Santa Cruz County Redevelopment Successo   80182YCR6 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 0.00 0.00 7,638.00 7,638.00
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Yorba Linda Redevelopment Agency Success  986176AP0 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 0.00 0.00 2,056.25 2,056.25
001 - Water System Consolidated Municipal Bonds Yorba Linda Redevelopment Agency Success  986176AR6 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2022 0.00 0.00 4,106.25 4,106.25
001 - Water System Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Fidelity Investments MM MM4022 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 221.94 221.94

Total 16,272.44
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Municipal Bonds Palm Springs CA Cmnty Redevelopment Age  69667ABR6 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 0.00 0.00 2,850.00 2,850.00
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Municipal Bonds Palm Springs CA Cmnty Redevelopment Age  69667ABS4 09/01/2020 09/01/2020 09/01/2021 0.00 0.00 1,350.00 1,350.00
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Fidelity Investments MM MM4022 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 57.54 57.54

Total 4,257.54

0.00 0.00 20,529.98 20,529.98

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Interest Activity

September 2020
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Portfolio Name Asset Class Description CUSIP/Ticker Trade Date Settlement 
Date

Maturity 
Date

Face 
Amount/Shares Principal Interest/ 

Dividends Total

Interest Received (Reinvested)
001 - Water System Consolidated Local Government Investment Pool CalTRUST LGIP CALTRUST923009/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 2,309.91 2,309.91
001 - Water System Consolidated Local Government Investment Pool CAMP LGIP CAMP6035 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 21,686.46 21,686.46
001 - Water System Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Federated MM MM3767 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 2,160.35 2,160.35
001 - Water System Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Morgan Stanley MMM0852 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 448.85 448.85

Total 26,605.57
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Local Government Investment Pool CAMP LGIP CAMP6035 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 8,980.72 8,980.72
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Federated MM MM3767 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 558.76 558.76
007 - Wastewater Consolidated Money Market Mutual Funds Morgan Stanley MMM0852 09/30/2020 09/30/2020 N/A 0.00 0.00 115.79 115.79

Total 9,655.27

0.00 0.00 36,260.84 36,260.84

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
 Monthly Interest Activity

September 2020



DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager C..t.L.. 

Sophia D. Skoda, Director of Finance~ 

Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) Loan Letter of 
Interest 

In early October 2020, the District submitted a Letter oflnterest (LOI) for the WIFIA loan 
program that is administered by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The LOI is 
the first step in the application process for a federal WIFIA loan. The full process is expected to 
take more than a year until a loan would be finalized and executed. This item will be discussed at 
the October 27, 2020 Finance/ Administration Committee meeting. 

DISCUSSION 

Since the inception of the WIFIA, the District has been monitoring the suitability of the loan 
program to fund capital projects. With the evolution of the program structure and with U.S. 
Treasury rates falling, staff believes pursuing a WIFIA loan may now be financially beneficial to 
the District. A WIFIA loan has the potential to provide the District a low-interest, flexible 
method of borrowing for capital projects. There are consulting costs associated with preparing an 
application that staff will consider before moving forward with a full application. 

In early October, the District submitted an LOI to EPA in order to demonstrate the District's 
eligibility, financial creditworthiness, project engineering feasibility, and alignment with WIFIA 
selection criteria. EPA will decide whether to invite the District to formally apply for a WIFIA 
loan. At the advice of the District's outside municipal advisors, the District included a broad 
array of water treatment-related projects, including the Orinda Water Treatment Plant (WTP) 
Disinfection Improvements Project, the Chemical Safety System Improvements Project, and the 
Walnut Creek WTP Pretreatment Project, among others. In the event the District is invited to 
submit an application, staff will work with EPA to refine the project list according to priorities 
and preferences of the District and EPA. EPA is able to fund 49 percent of specific project costs 
with WIFIA loan proceeds. The District would fund the remainder of project costs with a mix of 
rate revenue and bond proceeds. 

The cost estimates of the projects included in the LOI total $908 million over the next 10 years. 
The cost and timelines of these projects have not been finalized and securing a WIFIA loan does 
not bind the District to pursue these projects. Loan proceeds would be dispersed on a 



WIFIA Loan Letter of Interest 
Finance/ Administration Committee 
October 22, 2020 
Page2 

reimbursement basis, meaning the District would expend dollars and then be reimbursed with 
loan proceeds, similar to a State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan. 

The interest rate of a WIFIA loan is based on taxable U.S. Treasury rates at the time of the loan 
closing and the weighted average life of the loan. As of October 5, 2020, the District's municipal 
advisor estimates the loan interest rate would be 1.14 percent. This is lower than the District's 
current revenue bond borrowing cost of about 3 percent, though the relationship between the 
District's bond rates and U.S. Treasury rates could change between now and a future loan 
closing date. Borrowing under a WIFIA loan would likely offset borrowing the District would 
otherwise pursue with revenue bonds. 

NEXT STEPS 

The District is waiting for feedback on the LOI from EPA with the goal to receive an invitation 
to officially apply for a loan. At that point, the District will decide whether or not to submit a full 
application and, if so, will finalize the list of projects to finance with the loan as part of the full 
application. Staff will provide the Finance/ Administration Committee feedback from the EPA on 
the LOI and next steps if the District is invited to apply. 

CCC:SDS:RLH 
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DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

October 22, 2020 

Board of Directors 

Clifford C. Chan, General Manager Ct.-t.-

David A. Briggs, Manager of Water Operations¥($ 

Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Power Sales Report 

The attached Fiscal Year 2020 (FY20) Annual Power Sales Report summarizes program 
activities for the period July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. Revenue in FY20 was $5.5 million 
and exceeded budgeted revenue of $5.0 million. Forecasted power revenue for Fiscal Year 2021 
is $6. 7 million. The FY20 Annual Power Sales Report will be presented at the October 27, 2020 
Finance/ Administration Committee meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Accept the FY20 Annual Power Sales Report, pursuant to Board Resolution No. 33240-01. 

DISCUSSION 

In October 1999, the District and the Pacific Gas and Electric Company terminated their 
long-term power sales agreement. Since then the District has sold power under Board Resolution 
Nos. 33157-99, 33240-01, and 33375-03. These resolutions delegate authority to staff to buy and 
sell power, and require monthly and annual power sales reporting to the Board. 

District staff now conducts energy transactions through a series of agreements. On June 23, 
2015, the Board approved an agreement with Marin Clean Energy (MCE) for sale of energy and 
Renewable Energy Credits (RECs). The authority was expanded on September 13, 2016 to allow 
for the sale of Resource Adequacy (RA). On October 13, 2015, the Board approved a five-year 
enabling agreement with Shell Energy for sale of energy, RECs, and RA when necessary. This 
agreement will expire on December 31, 2020. A third agreement with 3 Phases Renewables, Inc. 
(3 Phases) was executed on September 25, 2018 for the sale of RA for calendar year 2019 with 
options for an additional four years. The Board will consider at the October 27, 2020 Regular 
Board meeting a general authorization for staff to sell RA and RECs to East Bay Community 
Energy (EBCE) for five years beginning in 2021 when EBCE is cost competitive. 



Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Power Sales Report 
Finance/ Administration Committee 
October 22, 2020 
Page2 

The expansion of Community Choice Aggregators in California in the past few years and 
changes to the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) rules for RA has led to a 
tenfold increase in the value of RA in recent years as shown in the chart below. 
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More information on energy sales, purchases, and definitions of terms is included in the attached 
report. 

CCC:DAB:sd 
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Annual Power Sales Report 
Fiscal Year 2020 

In June 2020, the District completed its 25th year of operation as an independent power 
producer. The District also completed its fifth year of delivering power to MCE under a ten-year 
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). This is the primary agreement for sale of hydroelectric power 
and RECs. A separate agreement authorizes the sale of RA. RA is a regulatory requirement for 
electric load serving entities to improve statewide grid reliability by ensuring load serving 
entities procure sufficient generator capacity commitments from actual resources. RA sales are 
exercised through a competitive bid process. The District completed sales of Pardee RA to Shell 
Energy for FY20 under a PP A that enables the sale of energy, RE Cs, and RA. In addition, sales 
of Camanche RA to 3 Phases continued in FY20. 

The FY20 net power revenue of $5.5 million was greater than the budgeted revenue of 
$5.0 million. Actual runoff was less than budget projections1

, generation was greater than budget 
(2 percent greater), energy pricing was less than budget (89 percent of budget), and RA revenue 
was greater than budget (660 percent greater). A quarterly update ofhydropower revenue was 
provided to the District's Budget Office. 

FY20 ENERGY SALES AND PURCHASES 

The following table shows earned revenue and transaction costs by month. 

Generation 
FY20 REVENUE/COSTS 

Month 
(MWh) 

APX MCE MCE I RA Sales 
Other REC 

CAISO 
Fees Energy RE Cs Sales 

Jul-19 23,878 -$7,570 I $658,909 $151,753 $29,136 
I 

$17,535 

Aug-19 12,793 -$7,570 $424,018 $82,824 $25,846 $54,359 

Sep-19 9,851 -$7,570 $366,251 $61 ,705 $24,107 $10,749 

Oct-19 11,351 -$7,570 $413,113 $70,686 $26,074 $12,567 

Nov-19 6,307 -$7,570 $290,096 $40,145 $14,122 $27,911 

Dec-19 7,436 -$7,570 $315,469 $48,034 $29,200 $24,781 

Jan-20 6,499 -$7,570 $227,607 $61 ,250 $ 124,960 $32,250 $174 

Feb-20 3,902 -$7,570 $115 ,142 $35,870 I $122,930 $62,000 $6,410 

Mar-20 3,508 -$7,570 $85,442 $28,780 $119,150 $86,874 -$11,159 

Apr-20 14,579 -$7,570 $305,523 $132,140 $139,100 -$7,697 

May-20 4,988 -$7,570 $80,288 $34,820 $146,240 $18,984 

Jun-20 7,000 -$7,570 $226,000 $57,560 $141,130 $30,306 $16,377 

Total 112,092 -$90,840 $3,507,858 $805,567 $941,995 $211,430 $170,992 

TOTAL NET REVENUE $5,547,002 

1 For budgeting purposes, staff assumes runoff associated with a 65 percent exceedance, a moderately dry scenario. 
Water year 2020 yielded runoff equivalent to a 75 percent exceedance (drier than assumed). 
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Generation: Mokelumne power generation was less than the forecasted due to less than 
forecasted runoff conditions. The FY20 generation forecast initially projected 148,439 MWh 
while actual generation was 112,092 MWh. Where possible, daily generation plans maximized 
energy production during the peak energy pricing hours. In FY20, this strategy increased revenue 
by an estimated $330,000. All generation optimization adhered to prescribed ramping criteria 
and District flow requirements. 

APX Fees: The APX, Inc. (APX) provides scheduling service and settlement calculations for the 
District's water and wastewater power sales transactions. 

MCE Sales: Sales occurred under the ten-year PPA, which terminates on June 30, 2025. This 
agreement includes the sale of hydroelectric energy and RECs with options to purchase RA. 
Staff is negotiating an amendment to the PP A that will simplify the scheduling process and result 
in lower scheduling costs and receipt of energy revenue up to two months earlier. 

• Energy: The monthly energy revenue is the sum of the daily energy delivered to MCE per 
schedule at the corresponding price index as defined in the contract. 

• RECs: The Camanche and Pardee power plants are considered renewable energy 
resources per the California Renewable Portfolio Standard and provide bundled RECs to 
counterparties. The District transfers bundled RECs associated with its generation to 
MCE at a set price. Excess bundled RECs can be sold to Shell Energy through a contract 
that will end on December 2020, or retained to help the District meet its greenhouse gas 
emissions goal outlined in the District's Policy 7.07 - Energy. 

Shell Energy Sales: Sales occurred under the five-year enabling PPA, which will terminate on 
December 31, 2020. This agreement includes the sale of hydroelectric energy, RECs (both 
secondary to the MCE Agreement) and RA. 

• Energy: No energy sales to Shell in FY20 
• RECs: Sale of 7 ,540 unscheduled bundled RECs for $94,250 
• RA: Six months of RA sales occurred from January 2020 through June 2020 for Pardee, 

enhancing revenue by $591,000. 

3 Phases Sales: Sales occurred under the five-year enabling PP A, which will terminate on 
December 31, 2023. This agreement is solely for sale of RA. 

• RA: Sales occurred from July 2019 through June 2020, enhancing revenue by $350,994. 

CleanFuture: An opportunity to sell unbundled RECs at a rate significantly above the market rate 
materialized resulting in additional revenue of $117,180. 

California Independent System Operator CCAISO): CAISO pays or charges a generator when 
they are over or under their scheduled generation in real time. There is a continuous deviation 
from scheduled generation due to line losses, changes in power station consumption, intentional 
generation changes, and electrical system emergencies. The payment or charge for these 
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scheduled deviations is netted out over the month, and includes CAISO fees to schedule and 
access the electrical grid. These payments and charges are collectively reported as CAISO sales 
in this report. CAISO sales are budgeted based on historical charges and generation, and include 
ancillary sales of standby generation capacity. Deviations from the monthly and weekly power 
sales plans occur after daily adjustments are made to accommodate water quality, diversions 
from other water rights holders, and to ensure adequate cold water for fishery releases. The 
Mokelumne River's average annual runoff is 745 thousand acre feet (TAF). For the water year 
ending September 30, 2020, the total runoff was approximately 420 TAF. 

FY21 PROJECTED ENERGY SALES AND PURCHASES 

The forecasted FY21 Mokelumne power revenue is $6. 7 million. This forecast is based on: 
revenue earned through September 2020, a median water year (50 percent exceedance) forecast for 
the remainder of the fiscal year, monthly average energy pricing of approximately $26/MWh, REC 
pricing per the contract with MCE, and RA pricing per the existing agreements with Shell and 
3 Phases. Power revenue includes energy, RECs and RA sales, APX, and CAISO fees. 

FORECASTEDFY21REVENUE 
Generation 

Month 
(MWh) Price APX 

($!MWh) Fees 
Energy Resource Adequacy RECs CAI SO 

Jul-20 4,187 $34 -$7,570 $137,217 $101,150 $38,630 $3,938 

Aug-20 5,584 $103 -$7,570 $553,810 $89,320 $50,290 $23,672 

Sep-20 4,750 $72 -$7,570 $345,000 $83,720 $38,900 -$2,497 

Oct-20 9,100 $34 -$7,570 $307.125 $86,720 $63, 700 -$5,460 

Nov-20 8,400 $45 -$7,570 $381,175 $45,780 $58,800 -$5,040 

Dec-20 8,200 $41 -$7,570 $337,709 $99,220 $57,400 -$4,920 

Jan-21 9,600 $35 -$7,570 $336,480 $26,460 $96,000 -$5, 760 

Feb-21 14,800 $31 -$7,570 I $461,020 $24,430 $148,000 -$8,880 

Mar-21 14,900 $19 -$7,570 $284,024 $20,650 $149,000 -$8,940 

Apr-21 21,000 $20 I -$7,570 $429,030 $40,600 $210,000 -$12,600 

May-21 29,500 $22 -$7,570 $645,755 $47,740 $295,000 -$17,700 

Jun-21 27,400 $20 -$7,570 $548,000 $42,630 $191,800 -$16,440 

Total 157,421 $26 -$90,840 $4,766,345 $708,420 $1,397,520 -$60,627 

July - Sept actual earned revenue TOTAL NET REVENUE $6,720,818 
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OTHER EFFORTS 

Staff will manage the following RA contracts in FY21: 

• Close out the first year and begin the second year of a three-year contract with 3 Phases 
for sale of Camanche RA with total revenue potential of $425,390 

• Close out the one-year RA Pardee sales agreement with Shell Energy with total revenue 
potential of $395,000 

• Finalize efforts to contract with EBCE for Pardee RA in calendar year 2021 with total 
revenue potential of $740,050 in FY21 

Potential total RA revenue for FY21 could reach $1,560,440. 

Staff will consider the option to extend the existing Shell Energy sales agreememt for energy, 
RECs and RA. This action will provide the District with additional sales flexibility to maximize 
hydropower revenue. 

NEXT STEPS 

During FY21, staff plans to: 

• Solicit RA pricing for Pardee for calendar year 2022 from MCE, Shell Energy, 3 Phases, 
EBCE, and possibly others to maximize the value of the District's RA. 

• Complete the upgrade of the 56K digital revenue meter data line and router at the Pardee 
power plant as required by the CAISO. 
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